THE NATIONAL SMALL INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.
NOTES FORMING AN INTEGRAL PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019
NOTE-1: CORPORATE INFORMATION & BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
1. Corporate Information
The National Small Industries Corporation Limited (referred to as “NSIC” or “The
Corporation”), is domiciled and incorporated in India [CIN No.
U74140DL1955GOI002481], governed by the Companies Act 2013 and is a
Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company
(NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India vide certificate no. N.14.03090
dated 29/12/2005. It is an ISO 9001-2015 certified Government of India ‘Mini
Ratna Category-1’ Enterprise under Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises (MSME).
NSIC has been working to promote aid and foster the growth of micro, small and
medium enterprises in the country through its various Offices / Technical Centre.
NSIC facilitates Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises with a set of specially
tailored scheme to enhance their competitiveness. NSIC provides integrated
support services under Marketing, Technology, Finance and other Support service.
2. Basis of Accounting
i. Statement of Compliance
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
the Corporation has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as
"IndAS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,
2015, as amended, with effect from 1st April 2018.
The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance
with IndAS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules
2015 (as amended). The date of transition to IndAS is 1st April 2017. Previous
period figures in the financial statements have been restated to IndAS.
Upto the year ended March 31st, 2018, the Corporation had prepared the
financial statements under the historical cost convention on accrual basis in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (Previous
GAAP) applicable in India, and the applicable Accounting Standards as
prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.
ii. Basis of Preparation and Presentation
The IndAS financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as a
going concern and under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial assets (equity instruments classified as Fair Value through Other
comprehensive income etc.) and financial liabilities (security deposits, etc.) that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting date as required under
relevant IndAS.
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iii. Use of estimates, assumptions and management judgements
In preparing the financial statements in conformity with the Corporation’s
accounting policies, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements, the
amount of revenue and expenses during the reported period and notes to
financial statements. Although these estimates are based upon management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from
these estimates. Any revision to the accounting estimates is recognized in the
period in which the results are crystallized.
iv. Critical Accounting Estimates and Management Judgements
In application of the accounting policies, the management of the Corporation is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgements used in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is stated here
under:
a. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs and Intangible Assets
are assessed at each reporting date by taking into account the nature of
asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operational condition of the
asset, past history of replacement and maintenance support. Upon review,
the management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value for
computation of depreciation/amortization.
b. Income Taxes
Estimates are involved in determining the provisions for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions.
Judgements are made in respect of expected future profitability to assess
deferred tax asset
c. Impairment of Trade Receivables
The impairment assessment for trade receivables are done based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss. The assumptions,
selection of inputs for calculation of impairment are based on management
judgement considering the past history, market conditions and forwardlooking estimates at the end of each reporting date.
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d. Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE)
The impairment assessment of non-financial assets is determined based on
estimation of recoverable amount of such assets. The assumptions used in
computing the recoverable amount are based on management judgement.
e. Defined Benefit Plans and Other long-term employee benefits
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefits,
and the present value of such obligation are determined by the independent
actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in future. Management believes
that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are
reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its longterm nature, this obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
f. Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, management uses
other valuation techniques to determine its fair value. The inputs to apply
these techniques are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility.
g. Provisions and contingencies
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the
assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past
experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual
outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure
estimated at end of each reporting period.
v. Functional and presentation currency
These IndAS financial Statements are prepared in Indian rupees, the national
currency of India and the functional currency of the Corporation. All financial
information presented in Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest lakh with
two decimals unless otherwise indicated.
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NOTE-2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements as given below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements.
The Corporation has selected to utilize the option under IndAS 101 on First-Time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards by not applying the provisions of IndAS
16 on Property, Plant and Equipment & IndAS 38 on Intangible Assets
retrospectively and continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount as a
deemed cost under IndAS at the date of transition to IndAS. Therefore, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as per the
previous GAAP as at 1 April 2017, i.e. the Corporation’s date of transition to
IndAS, is maintained for transition to IndAS.
I.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) – Tangible PPEs
a) Initial recognition and measurement
i.

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost.
Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated
depreciation, lease terminal adjustment and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and working condition necessary for its
intended use.

ii.

Leased assets and seized leased assets out of leased assets
acquired up to 31st March’2001: are stated at historical cost, net of
accumulated balance of depreciation, lease terminal adjustment and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

iii.

Items of property, plant and equipment other than leased assets
and seized leased assets out of leased assets are stated at their
original cost of acquisition including taxes, duties, freight and other
incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the
concerned assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

iv.

When parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, they are
recognized separately by identifying such components.

v.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and working condition necessary for its intended
use. Borrowing costs (after deducting income on temporary investment
of borrowed funds, if any) directly attributable to the specified item of
property, plant and equipment, are capitalized to such items.

vi.

In case of assets available for use /put to use, where final statement of
accounts /settlement of bills with contractors/ implementing agency is yet
to be affected, capitalization is done on estimated basis, subject to
necessary adjustments, including those arising out of settlement of
arbitration/court cases, in the year of final settlement.
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b) Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment when it is probable that future
economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise
and the cost of the property, plant and equipment can be measured reliably.
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Corporation and
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
c) Derecognition
Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no future economic
benefits are expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and
losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.
II.

Capital Work in Progress
a) Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet
ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date.
b) The Assets under construction are carried at cost comprising direct cost
(cost of materials, labour & other incidental expenditure) & related indirect
expenses (including overheads) attributable to bring the assets to the
location and working condition necessary for its intended use.
c) Income pertaining to the construction period such as interest income,
liquidated damages recovered, etc. is adjusted against the expenditure
during construction period.
d) Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of
statements of account received from the contractors.

III.

Intangible Assets
a) Initial recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Corporation have finite useful
lives, are recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes any directly attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the
assets ready for its intended use.
b) Subsequent Costs
Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying
amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits
deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.
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c) Derecognition
An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on
disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible assets and
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
IV.

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets are treated as impaired,
when carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An impaired loss
is recognized immediately to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which
an asset is identified as impaired and the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to it recoverable amount, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalue amount, where the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease. If there is any indication that previously assessed impairment loss
no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amount.

V.

Depreciation on Tangible Assets and Amortization and Intangible PPEs
a) Leased assets and Seized leased assets out of leased assets acquired
up to 31st March 2001:
Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis from the day the assets are put
to use at written down value method as per the useful life prescribed in part
C to schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
b) Items of Property, Plant & Equipment other than leased assets and
seized leased assets out of leased assets
i)

Depreciation on PPE is charged on straight-line method as per useful
lives specified in part C to schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013
except Mobile phone Instruments.
S.
No

Nature of Assets

Useful
Life

Rate
(SLM)

Residual Value

i.

Building RCC frame structure

60 Years

1.58%

5% of original cost

ii.

Building other than RCC frame structure

30 Years

3.17%

5% of original cost

iii.

Building Temporary Structure

iv.

Roads-Carpeted- RCC

v

Roads-Carpeted- other than RCC

3 Years

31.67%

5% of original cost

10 Years

9.50%

5% of original cost

5 Years

19.00%

5% of original cost

vi.

Roads-Non-Carpeted

3 Years

31.67%

5% of original cost

vii.

Plant and Machinery

15 Years

6.33%

5% of original cost

viii.

Furniture and Fittings

10 Years

9.50%

5% of original cost

ix.

Vehicles-2 wheeler

10 Years

9.50%

5% of original cost

x.

Vehicles-4 wheeler

8 Years

11.88%

5% of original cost

xi.

Office Equipment

5 Years

19.00%

5% of original cost

xii.

Computers and Processing Units

3 Years

31.67%

5% of original cost

xiii.

Servers and Networks

6 Years

15.83%

5% of original cost

xiv.

Electrical Installations and Equipment’s

10 Years

9.50%

xv.

Intangible Assets- Software

5 Years

20.00%

₹ 1/-

xvi.

Mobile Phone Instruments

3 Years

33.33%

₹ 1/-

5% of original cost
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ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)
vii)

VI.

Depreciation on additions to / deductions from Property, Plant &
Equipment (PPE) during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to
the date on which the asset is available for use/disposal.
Assets costing up to ₹. 0.10 Lakh are depreciated fully in the year of
purchase, after retaining 5% of original cost as residual value except
Mobile phone Instruments.
Mobile phone Instruments costing over ₹ 0.10 lakh, are depreciated over
a period of 3 years, starting from the year in which it is acquired, after
retaining ₹1/- as residual value.
Depreciation in case of PPE purchased out of Government grants, is
charged to ‘Capital Reserve’ (which is in the nature of 'Deferred Income')
in proportion to depreciation charged on such assets. The capital
reserve is created at the time of purchase of fixed assets out of grants
received with the purchase cost.
Lease hold land is amortized over the lease period.
Cost of software recognized as ‘Intangible Assets’ is amortized on
straight line method over a period of five years, starting from the year in
which it is acquired, after retaining ₹1/- as residual value.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Corporation incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs incurred for qualifying assets are capitalized up to the date,
the asset is ready for intended use, after netting off any income earned on
temporary investment of such funds, based on borrowing incurred specifically
for financing the asset. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit & loss in the
reporting period in which they accrue.

VII.

Inventories
a) The inventory mainly comprises of the followingi. Stock of stationery and miscellaneous items.
ii. Stores, pattern, moulds, tools, measuring instruments and goods in
transit.
iii. Stock of finished goods, finished components, work in progress and
stores in NSIC Technical Service Centers.
iv. Stock of finished goods pertaining to commercial activities.
v. Stock of repossessed / seized / surrendered machines under hire
purchase (HP) and composite term loan (CTL).
vi. Stock of repossessed / seized / surrendered machines under equipment
leasing where assets given on or after 01.04.2001.
vii. Obsolete and unserviceable assets
viii. Land & Building and Sheds, etc. in the nature of stock in trade
b) Cost is determined on First in First Out (FIFO) basis.
c) Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
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Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. In case of stock of
Finished goods, finished components and work-in-progress in NSIC
Technical Service Centers, apart from direct costs, overheads are charged
in the ratio of total overheads for the year as reduced by the overheads
charged to outside job orders at pre-determined standard rates to direct
labour cost.
d) Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
e) The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores &
spares is ascertained by management’s best estimates of net realizable
value of such inventories and provided for.
VIII.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
All the items of income/ revenue (incl. revenue from training activities and
common facilities) & expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis where
there is certainty as to realization as described hereunder:
a) Income from Financial Activities under Hire Purchase, Marketing, Raw
Material Distribution / Assistance, Bill Financing and Composite Term
Loan
i.
ii.

iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

vii.

viii.

Interest Income in respect of loans and advances, are recognized on
accrual basis with reference to contractual terms.
No Interest income is accrued from the date, loans and advances have
become NPA, in terms of, the Master Direction - Non- Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.
Interest accrued and not realized for the period upto the date of NPA, is
reversed.
Processing fees/ service charges is treated as income on time
proportionate basis.
Where the unit’s accounts are frozen, no further interest is charged to
the unit’s account.
Penal interest under different activities/ schemes of the Corporation
where ever considered as doubtful of recovery is treated as the income
in the year of its realization.
Excess of sales proceeds of repossessed / seized / surrendered
machines over their value in case of hire purchase and equipment
leasing as on the date of repossession/seizure / surrender is adjusted
against the defaulted hirer’s/lessee’s account. Any excess over and
above the amount due from the hirer/lessee is treated as income in the
year of receipt of sale proceeds.
Application processing fee, wherever applicable, is treated as income on
receipt basis.
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b) Registration Fee under Single Point Registration Scheme
Registration fees under Single Point Registration Scheme, is recognized as
income only on date of issuance of certificate for fresh registration/ renewal/
amendment therein.
c) Income from Turnkey Projects / Service Contracts
i. Revenue from consultancy, project management and supervision charges,
is recognized in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of
the transaction / handing over of the project, at the reporting date as per
the terms of the contract.
ii. Direct Expenditure incurred on project are accounted for under the project
and Indirect expenses are accounted for under the natural head of
account of respective head.
d) Income from Leasing
Leases are classified as Operating lease and Finance Lease. Leases in
which the Corporation does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards/ benefits of ownership of the asset to the lessee are classified as
Operating Lease. Leases other than operating lease are classified as
Finance Lease. The Finance Lease is not undertaken by the Corporation
both as lessor as well as lessee.
Corporation was providing assistance under its Equipment Leasing
business which was discontinued since 2003. Income recognition in respect
of such leased assets and seized leased assets out of leased assets is as
under:
I. On lease transactions entered up to 31st March 2001
i. Lease rentals in respect of transactions entered up to 31st March
2001 are accounted for on accrual basis, net of the lease
equalization charges.
ii. Cost of capital relating to outstanding net investment in the leased
assets is deducted from lease rentals to arrive at recovery of capital.
The difference of recovery of capital and statutory depreciation is
depicted through lease equalization charge account. The contra
effect of such lease equalization account is reflected by lease
terminal adjustment account in the balance sheet. The short fall of
capital recovery, if any, is accounted for in the year of disposal of
asset.
II. Lease transactions entered on or after 1st April 2001
The finance income and recovery of net investment included in the lease
rentals are work out at the interest rate implicit in the lease. The finance
income is recognized as income and credited in Statement of Profit &
Loss. The difference of lease rentals and finance income is considered
as recovery towards net investment.
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III. Operating lease
i.

Corporation as a Lessor
It inter-alia includes space, godown, etc. owned by the Corporation
and given on lease for which rental income is received. The Assets
subject to operating lease are included in Property, Plant &
Equipment and depreciated over its useful life. Lease income in
respect of ‘Operating Lease’ is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless where
scheduled increase in rent compensates the Corporation with
expected inflationary costs.

ii.

Corporation as a Lessee
It inter-alia includes space, godown and accommodations for staff
taken by the Corporation on lease for which lease rent payments are
made. These lease arrangements are usually renewable on mutually
agreed terms. Such payments (net of recoveries) made are
recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless scheduled increase in
rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary.

e) Treatment of Decree Awarded
Where a decree has been awarded in favour of the Corporation, necessary
adjustments in the unit’s accounts are made at the time of realization of
dues.
f) Dividend Income
Dividend on investment is account for on the basis when right to receive the
same is established.
g) Scrap Sale
Income from sale of scrap is accounted on realization basis.
IX.

Foreign Currency transactions and translations
a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting
date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which it arises.
c) Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.
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X.

Government Grants
The approved grants from Government of India under various promotional
activities are recognized on accrual basis where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.
In case of approved Promotional activities, expenditure incurred / committed for
the year, but grant received in subsequent year, is accounted on accrual basis.
Receipt of grants is recognized as advance from the Government of India and
is shown as Amounts Payable to Government of India. Thereafter, the grant
amount, to the extent of expenditure incurred, is recognized as income in the
Statement of Income & Expenditure.
In case of capital grant, the expenditure incurred is reduced from the
recognized grant income by creating capital reserve which is in the nature of
'Deferred Income'. The capital reserve is recognized as income each year over
the life of the relevant assets in proportion to depreciation on those assets.
Government grants relating to Revenue are recognized in Statement of Profit
and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Corporation
recognizes the incurred related costs as expenses for which such grants
relates / are intended to cover.
Government grants towards reimbursement of amount of fees towards
‘Membership Fees under SPRS scheme (NSSH)’, ‘Inspection Charges under
SPRS scheme (NSSH)’, ‘Membership Fees under B2B scheme (NSSH)’,
‘Training Fees for Capacity Building (NSSH)’ and ‘Rent of Office PremisesNSSHO’ (applicable where the property is owned by NSIC and where the rent
is paid to outsider, the same is accounted for as expenditure of NSSHO) shall
be charged as grant utilized under the group head “Membership/ Inspection
fees, rent, etc under NSSH” and is reduced from the recognized grant
income. Similarly, government grants towards reimbursement of training fees
under Assistance to Training Institutions (ATI) scheme shall also be charged as
grant utilized under the group head “Training Fees under ATI” and is reduced
from the recognized grant income.
Interest earned, if any, on the Government grant received as per the terms of
the sanction of the grant, is recognized as advance from the Government of
India and is shown as Amounts Payable to Government of India.
In case, the net result under advance accounts of various promotional activities
is “deficit”, it is shown as “Amount Receivable from the Government of India for
deficit in grants” under the head Financial Assets and if there is “surplus”, the
same is shown as “Amount Payable to the Government of India for surplus in
grants” under the head Financial Liabilities.

XI.

Allocation of Expenses
The expenses directly attributable to the commercial and promotional activities
are charged to the respective activities. In case of indirect expenses, the same
are allocated on the basis of business generation under different commercial
activities during the year. In case of promotional activities, the indirect
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expenses are allocated based on management estimates, within the limits
prescribed by Ministry of MSME under the respective activity.
XII.

Employee Benefits
Employee Benefits include Salaries and Wages, Provident Fund, Pension,
Gratuity, leave encashment and other terminal benefits.
a) Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries,
allowances, annual leave and sick leave which are accrued during the year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the
Corporation.
Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the related services.
b) Post-Employment Benefits and Other Long-Term Employee Benefits
(i) Defined Contribution plan
A defined contribution is a post-employment benefit plan where
Corporation pays fixed contributions into different organizations and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Contributions to Provident Fund & Pension Fund made by the
Corporation are considered as defined contribution plan. Such
contributions paid/ payable during the year are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss for the
year in which the related services are rendered.
The contribution to provident fund is paid to a fund administered
through a separate trust and contribution to pension fund is paid to Life
Insurance Corporation of India through trust.
(ii) Defined benefits plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than
defined contribution plan. Corporation’s Liability towards gratuity, leave
encashment and other employees’ benefits namely Sick leave, T.A. on
Retirement, Leave Travel Concession for CDA employees and Postretirement medical benefits (PRMB), made by the Corporation, are
considered under Defined Benefit Plan.
The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans
except PRMB is determined based on actuarial valuation at the yearend using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. Remeasurement recognized in Other
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Comprehensive Income (OCI) is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to the Statement of Profit & Loss.
Regarding PRMB, medical corpus is created as per Department of
Public Enterprises guidelines which is utilized for the payment of
premium to the Insurance Company.
XIII.

Prior Period Expenses and Income
Income/Expenditure relating to a prior period, which does not exceed 0.25 % of
the Revenue from Operations in each case, are treated as income/expenditure
of current year.

XIV.

Prepaid Items
Expenses pertaining to subsequent financial year(s) are treated as prepaid only
where the payment exceeds ₹ 1.00 lakh in each case.

XV.

Taxation
Tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Tax
recognized in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity where the
tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.
a) Current Tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year
as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provision
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the other applicable tax laws.
b) Deferred Tax
i. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purpose.
ii. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences.
iii. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
assets can be utilized.
iv. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
c) Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognized at the time when the liability to pay the related dividend is
recognized.
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XVI.

Cash and cash equivalents –
Cash comprises of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, etc. The
Corporation considers cash equivalents as all short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

XVII.

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equities shares outstanding during the period.

XVIII.

Dividends
Dividends payable to a Corporation’s shareholders are recognized as changes
in equity in the period in which they are approved/ recommended by the
shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors respectively.

XIX.

Cash Flow Statement –
Cash flows are reported using indirect method as prescribed in IndAS-7
“Statement of Cash Flows”.

XX.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets –
a) Provisions
(i) Provisions are recognized when the Corporation has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, provided there is
possibility of that the Corporation will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
(ii) The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.
(iii) When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognized as an asset provided it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.
(iv) The Corporation being a Government of India Enterprise, was
exempted from compliance of RBI Prudential Norms relating to NBFCs
vide RBI circular No. DNBR(PD) CC No.043/03.10.119/2015-16 dated
1st July’2015. However, the said exemption now stands withdrawn vide
RBI circular No. RBI/2017-18/181DNBR (PD)CC.No.092/ 03.10.001
/2017-18 dated 31st May’ 2018 and compliance of regulatory and
statutory provisions are now also applicable to Government NBFCs, as
per the timeline mentioned in the circular.
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The classification and provisioning norms for receivables and loans &
advances (net of interest suspense account and cash collateral
available with the Corporation) of Financing/ Non-Financing Schemes
and of Technical Centers/ STPs, have been made as per IndAS or as
per IRAC prudential norms issued by RBI are annexed herewith.
b) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities is a possible obligation arising from past events and
the existence of which will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Corporation. Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
The Corporation discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Notes to
Financial Statements. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of
judgment of the management/independent experts and are reviewed/
assessed continuously at each balance sheet date to determine whether
outflow of economic resources have become probable. If the outflow
becomes probable, then relative provision is recognized in the financial
statements to reflect the current management’s estimates.
c) Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in Notes which usually
arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits.
Contingent assets are assessed continuously to determine whether inflow
of economic benefits becomes virtually certain, then such assets and the
relative income will be recognized in the financial statement.
XXI.

Financial instruments –
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
I. Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except in case of Trade Receivables which are measured at the transaction
price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial asset at
fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial asset at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the statement of profit
& loss.
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II. Subsequent Measurement
A. Financial assets
Financial assets include Investments, Loans, Trade Receivables, Security
Deposits, Cash and Cash Equivalents etc. Management determines the
classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the assets were acquired.
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are
classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:
•
•
•

at amortized cost using effective interest rates (EIR)
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for
impairment at least at each reporting date.
i. Financial Assets at Amortized Cost – A financial asset shall be
measured at Amortized cost, if both of the following conditions are met:
a) Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
b) Contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discount estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that forms an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums and discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset,
or where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other loans & advances falls into this category of financial instruments.
ii. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset shall be measured at Fair value through other
comprehensive income, if both of the following conditions are met:
• The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset; and
• The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding
• Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI and accumulated in
reserve
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Equity instrument have been classified as at FVTOCI wherein all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized
in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L,
even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.
iii. Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at
amortized cost or FVTOCI, with all changes in the fair value recognized
in Statement of P&L.
III. Impairment in Financial Assets
The Corporation has applied the impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109
retrospectively. However, as permitted by Ind-AS 101, it has used reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to
determine the credit risk as at the date that financial instruments were initially
recognized in order to compare it with the credit risk as at the transition date.
However, as permitted by Ind-AS 101, the Corporation has not undertaken an
exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition
to Ind-AS, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition.
The Corporation at each reporting year end tests a financial asset or a group
of financial assets (other than financial assets held at fair value through profit
or loss) for impairment based on evidence or information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Expected credit loss (ECL) is assessed and
impairment loss recognized if the credit risk of the financial asset is
significantly increased.
The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in statement of profit
and loss.
Impairment model under IndAS-109 applies to financial instruments as listed
below:
• Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at Amortized Cost
• Equity investments are measured at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
• Loan commitments not measured at FVTPL (Fair Value Through Profit and
Loss)
All credit exposure is classified into performing and non-performing assets as
per RBI guidelines applicable to Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs).
General provision for standard assets and specific provision for sub-standard,
doubtful and loss assets is being made in accordance with applicable RBI
guidelines.
The Corporation at each reporting year, tests loan given to units for
impairment as per Ind AS- 109. However, Impairment loss is recognized as
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higher of impairment loss calculated as per provision of Ind AS 109 or as per
RBI guidelines.
IV. Derecognition of Financial Assets
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual right to receive cash
flows from the financial assets expires or transfers the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the asset.
On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received &
receivable, and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in Equity, is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset.
B. Financial Liability
The Corporation's financial liabilities include Trade and other payables,
Loans and Borrowings including Bank Overdrafts, Earnest Money Deposit
and Retention Money.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction cost.
I. Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
i.

Financial liabilities at Amortized costs – After initial measurement,
such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings, trade payables and other contractual liabilities.

ii.

Financial liabilities at Fair value through statement of Profit and
loss, include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss. The carrying value of those financial liabilities
which are to be discharged within twelve months is considered to be
its fair value.

II. Derecognition of Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
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liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

************
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Annexure to Accounting Policy-XX (a)(iv)
Classification and Provisioning Norms for Receivables and Loans & Advances
The norms of making provisions for Receivables and Loans & Advances (net of
interest suspense account and cash collateral available with the Corporation) under
Financing/ Non-Financing Schemes and of Technical Centers/ STPs, are as follows:
(i) Classification for Receivables and Loans & Advances
The Receivables and Loans & Advances under Financing/ Non-Financing
Schemes and of Technical Centers/ STPs are classified among Trade Receivables
and Loans & Advances as mentioned below:
a. Trade Receivables: Trade Receivables comprises of receivables in respect of
dues under Hire Purchase, Leasing & Marketing activities and includes
receivables on account of transactions at Technical Centers & STPs.
b. Loans & Advances: Loans and advances comprises of receivables in respect
of dues under Raw Material Assistance, Bill Discounting, Term Loan,
Composite Term Loan and Advances recoverable in cash or in-kind including
security deposits & staff advances, receivables from banks etc.
c. Trade receivables and Loans & Advances are treated as `Secured’ (unless
otherwise stated), to the extent of the securities available with the Corporation
by way of any of the following - market value/ WDV/ committed value (in
respect of legal/seized cases) of assets financed (identified & lying in
possession of the unit/Corporation), any advance received from the unit,
Earnest Money Deposit (EMD), seized machines, consideration money,
advance installment/ rental, advance received from hirer / advance against
purchase of machine, Collateral Security-Equitable Mortgage of Immovable
Property, Bills for supplies made to the Government Departments, Bank
Guarantee (BG)/ Letter of Credit (LC) or any other tangible security/ under
contractual rights / any amount owes by the Corporation to the units including
transactions under back-to-back arrangement. It shall also include all securities
obtained from the units as per the terms of sanction of assistance.
The amounts not covered by above are treated as ‘Unsecured’.
(ii) Provisioning Norms for Receivables and Loans & Advances:
a. Provisioning Norms in respect of Receivables and Loans & Advances
under Financing Schemes: Receivables and Loans & Advances under
financing scheme comprises of receivables in respect of dues under Hire
Purchase, Leasing, Raw Material Assistance, Bill Discounting, Term Loan,
Composite Term Loan, receivables from banks etc.
Provisioning norms based on IRAC prudential norms issued by RBI for
various items of Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances are depicted below:
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(A) Receivables under Hire Purchase and Leasing:
S No

Scheme

1.

Hire Purchase

2.

Leasing

Provision % of
Net Outstanding
100%
100%

(B) Receivables under Raw Material Assistance, Banks, Bill Discounting,
and Term Loan:
S
no.
1
2

Classification of Outstanding Receivables and Loans & Advances
Standard Assets (Up to 210 days)
Sub-Standard Assets (Over 210 days
but up to 575 days)
Doubtful Assets
Secured Portion of Doubtful assets:
Over 575 days but up to 940 days

3

Over 940 days but up to 1670 days
Over 1670 days

4

*

No default
NPA for not exceeding 1
year

Doubtful for 1 year (i.e. NPA
for 2 years)
Doubtful for 1 to 3 year (i.e.
NPA for 2 to 4 years)
Doubtful over 3 years (i.e.
NPA for more than 4 years)

Provision %
of Net
Outstanding
0.40%
10%*

20%
30%
50%

Doubtful assets not covered by the
realizable value of security to which the
Corporation has a valid recourse.

100%

Loss Assets, if not written off

100%

In respect of Assets/accounts which were standard as on 31.08.17 and the outstanding
dues were exceeding 210 days but within 270 days, a provision of 5% shall be made and
shall be treated as standard.

(C) Receivables under Composite Term Loans: The provisions required in
respect of the default under Composite Term Loan Scheme are to be
arrived at as follows: (a) The amount of balance outstanding (principal amount in default) as at
31st March.
(b) CGTSI cover available i.e. 75% of “a” above or ₹ 18.75 lakh, as
applicable in each case, whichever is least.
(c) Amount not covered under CGTSI cover (a-b).
(d) On the amount covered under CGTSI as at `b' above, no provisions
have to be made. However, in respect of the amount not covered under
CGTSI i.e. at ‘c’ above and interest receivable on the defaulted amount
(net of penal interest suspense account) & other charges, if any,
provision @ 100% to be made.
(D) The provisioning is made at higher of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
assessment as per IndAS or RBI norms as per Non-Banking Financial
Company –Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve
bank) Directions, 2016 as amended from time to time, whichever is higher.
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b. Provisioning Norms in respect of Receivables and Loans & Advances
from Non-Financing Schemes:
(i) Receivables and Loans & Advances from non-financing scheme comprises
of receivables in respect of dues under Marketing activities, receivables on
account of transactions at Technical Centers & STPs, receivables on
account of Sale of Services (i.e. receivables for License & Housekeeping
fees, rent, training fees, EMC, TIC, events etc), advances recoverable in
cash or in-kind (primarily consist of advances paid to outside parties
including advances paid to bulk suppliers having MOU with the
Corporation), security deposits, staff advances (including interest accrued
but not due thereon) and other assets.
(ii) Provisions, if required, on Receivables and Loans & Advances from Central
Government / State Governments / Government Institutions / Government
Companies and other Central / State Government departments / bodies, are
made wherever considered appropriate by the management.
(iii) No provision for receivables in respect of ‘Receivables’ under Export and
Marketing Scheme is made to the extent the amount appears under
‘Payable’ and to the extent of service charges adjusted against amount
payable to supplier, for supplies pertaining to the same transaction under
back-to-back arrangement with suppliers.
(iv) In other items of Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances, its Classification
and Provisioning norms (based on IndAS) are depicted below:
S No

1

2

Classification of Outstanding Receivables and Loans &
Advances
All the following receivables and Loans & Advances are treated
as ‘Secured’ (unless otherwise stated):
a) Receivables and Loans & Advances due from Government
Departments/ Institutions/ Undertakings
b) Amount outstanding is having back-to-back amount
arrangement
c) All receivables and Loans & Advances against which the
Corporation holds tangible realizable security
d) Advances paid to bulk suppliers (having MOU arrangement
with the Corporation) to the extent of advance have already
been received from the MSMEs and / or amount paid out of
the sanctioned limit under RMA against BG.
e) Security Deposits paid by the Corporation and
correspondingly the buyer of supplies also provides security
to the Corporation (incl Security Deposits under contractual
rights).
f) All receivables and Loans & Advances / Security Deposits
paid by the Corporation under contractual valid agreement/
contract
g) From employees working in the Corporation.
All the following receivables and Loans & Advances are treated
as ‘Impaired’ (unless otherwise stated):
a) Amount/ advances with outside parties & are doubtful of
recovery.
b) Amount receivable from employees left / resigned from the
Corporation and no amount is available to set-off the
outstanding.

Provision %
of Net
Outstanding

NIL

100%

NOTE-34: OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1. The following information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent the status of such
parties identified on the basis of information/documents available with the Corporation
(₹ in Lakhs)

S.
No.
1

2

3

4

5

Particulars
Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
a) Principal Amount
b) Interest due thereon
Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the
amount paid to the supplier beyond the appointed day;
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006;
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

2018-19

2017-18

18757.74
Nil

18133.69
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

The Corporation facilitates MSEs in marketing their product through tender participation on
behalf of MSEs under Consortia and Tender Marketing Scheme. As per the terms of
agreement between NSIC and MSEs, MSEs are executing tenders awarded by the various
government departments through NSIC and the amount becomes due to MSEs only on
receipt of payment from the respective buyer departments. Till last year, the amount payable
under Consortia and Tender Marketing Scheme to MSEs was shown as “Trade PayablesDues to others”. In current financial year, based on Udyog Aadhaar Memorandum (UAM)
number and registration with the Corporation (NSIC) of the suppliers, the amount payable to
such units have been shown as “Trade Payables-Dues to MSMEs”, in the financial
statements.
As per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006, NSIC has
been defined as a ‘Supplier’ under its Section 2(n) sub clause (i). Further, Ministry of MSME
vide Circular dated 31.08.2016 has clarified that NSIC acts a ‘Facilitator’ in bringing together
the MSEs (the supplying units) and the various ‘buyers’. As NSIC at no stage becomes the
beneficiary ‘buyer’ for the goods being supplied by the MSEs to the PSUs and other
government departments through NSIC’s facilitation, NSIC is not classified as ‘buyer’ in
terms of Section 15 & 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 for the purpose of interest on delayed
payment. The PSUs or other Government Departments, being beneficiary ‘buyer’ of the
goods, are responsible for making the payment of the goods supplied by the ‘supplier’ and
also for the interest on delayed payment in terms of the Section 15 & 16 of MSMED Act
2006. Accordingly, the provision relating to interest payable to such units, is not applicable to
the NSIC.

In respect of Other Trade Payables, the Corporation has not received any memorandum (as
required to be filed by the suppliers with the notified authority under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006) claiming their status as Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises (MSME). Consequently, the amount payable to such units has been shown as
“Trade Payables-Dues to others”.
2. The Corporation has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances of banks and
other parties. Letters seeking confirmation for year-end outstanding balances have been sent
to trade receivables, creditors, contractors’ advances, deposits, borrowers etc. with a request
to confirm or send comment within the stipulated period failing which balance as indicated in
the letter would be taken as confirmed. In case of Government/Local Authorities dues, and
the cases where 100% Provisions are made, RC is issued and / or under litigation/ legal
proceedings, customer balances are normally not subject to confirmation. No adverse
communication has been received from any party. Moreover, reconciliations of the accounts
with the parties are carried out as an ongoing process.
However, confirmations in some cases as detailed below are awaited, the impact of which in
the opinion of the management is not significant:
Balance Confirmation Statement(₹ In Lakhs)
S.
No.

Nature of Account

1

Trade Payable

2

Financial Liabilities

3

Receivables

4

Loan and Advances

5

Other Financial Assets

6

Bank Balance
Total

Total
Outstanding
(Gross)

20,486.74

Govt Dues, Amount where
100% Provisions made, RC is
issued and / or under
litigation/ legal proceedings

Balance
Outstanding

Confirmation
Received

Confirmation
not Received

17,689.20

513.79

19,972.95

2,283.75

188,321.88

283.96

188,037.92

185,049.70

2,988.22

20,843.61

11,563.26

9,280.35

699.28

8,581.07

251,792.52

8,455.23

243,337.29

222,288.63

21,048.66

18,159.03

5662.21

12496.82

12197.54

299.28

9,463.94

0.00

9,463.94

9,463.94

0.00

509,067.72

26,478.45

482,589.27

431,982.84

50,606.43

3. In the opinion of Management, all Financial and Non-Financial Assets, including Loans &
Advances, have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and necessary provision has been
made, wherever required, in terms of provisioning norms as per Annexure to Accounting
Policy XX(a)(iv).
4. The aspect relating to the matter of outstanding dues of ₹17350 Lakh recoverable from
United Bank of India, Kolkata towards rightful invocation of bank guarantees by NSIC in
June/July 2016 and reported in detail in the Annual Reports / Directors’ Report for 2015-16 to
2017-18, is mentioned here below:
a) During the process of reconfirmation sought by the management in June/July 2016 w.r.t.
the BGs held by all offices of the Corporation, from the BG issuing banks and their
respective Zonal / Controlling offices, United Bank of India (UBI) branches at Jadvapur
Vidyapeeth and Hazra Road had informed that in 61 cases involving total BGs of
₹ 17350 lakh, the BGs had either been invoked (55 cases worth ₹ 15550 lakh) or not
issued by the Banks (6 cases worth ₹ 1800 lakh). However, in all these cases the original
BGs issued by the banks were lying in the safe custody of respective NSIC’s offices and
had not been invoked by them.

b) Immediately on noticing the aforesaid irregularities, FIR was lodged on 26.07.2016 with
the Officer in Charge, Bidhan Nagar North Police Station, Salt Lake, Kolkata and the
case was transferred to CID Kolkata, West Bengal. As informed by the CID, charge-sheet
has been filed in the said case. As a part of their investigation, the CID referred the
original BGs and related documents, seized from NSIC and UBI offices, to their forensic
lab (i.e. QDEB-Questioned Documents Examination Bureau) for examination. The
findings of QDEB as informed to the Hon’ble court by CID inter-alia mentioned that
United Bank of India had issued two sets of Bank Guarantees of the same number, which
is contrary to the rules laid in Bank’s Management System. The findings of QDEB also
corroborate NSIC’s claim of holding original bank guarantees in all cases valuing
₹ 17350 lakh.
c) NSIC, which was in possession of original BGs, lodged its rightful invocation claims in
July-August, 2016, in the aforesaid 61 cases valuing ₹ 17350 lakh with UBI. The
invocation of BG by NSIC was within the validity period of the BG.
d) The Ministry of MSME (the administrative wing of NSIC) after examination of the status of
the case and findings of CBI based on the QDEB report, has regularly taken up the
matter with Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance (the administrative
ministry of United Bank of India) asking the later to impress upon the bank to honour
NSIC’s rightful invocation of bank guarantees worth ₹17350 lakh together with interest
from the date of invocation i.e. July, 2016.
e) In furtherance to the findings of CID, a meeting was convened by Central Vigilance
Commission (CVC) on 20.07.2018. CVC in its communication dated 03.08.2018 to the
Cabinet Secretariat has summarized its findings on the case mentioning that “The matter
has been examined in the Commission. The Commission has observed several lapses
on part of concerned Banks in Banking procedures while dealing with invocation of the
Bank Guarantees (BGs) etc. in this case”.
f) The Commission further opined that “This litigation may cause further loss of revenue to
the Government. Hence the Commission is of the opinion that a meeting may be
convened with the senior officers from department of Financial Services and Ministry of
Small and Medium Enterprises by Cabinet Secretary to resolve the issue”.
g) The matter was taken up for resolution in line with the above direction of CVC with
Cabinet Secretariat. Cabinet Secretariat advised that for settlement of such commercial
disputes, the procedure as laid down in OM No. 4(1)/2013-DPE(GM)/FTS-1835 dated
22.05.2018 issued by Department of Public Enterprises on ‘Administrative Mechanism
for Resolution of CPSEs Disputes (AMRCD)’, is to be followed. Accordingly, the matter
was referred to the Committee of Secretaries under first level (tier I) of AMRCD.
h) As the matter was not resolved at first level (tier I) of AMRCD, it was referred to second
level (tier II) to cabinet secretariat under the AMRCD mechanism. However, the meeting
of core group of Secretaries chaired by the Cabinet Secretary under second level (tier II)
of AMRCD mechanism could not be held till 30.9.2019, when the accounts for the year
ending 31.3.2019 were placed before the Board of Directors for approval. Due to
applicability of RBI Prudential Norms to the Government Non-Banking Financial
Company in terms of RBI Circular dated 31.5.2018, the Corporation was under
compulsion to make provisions for such disputed amount recoverable from the Banks,
though the outstanding amount of ₹17,057.39 lakh, backed by the bank guarantees of ₹
17,350.00 lakh, was considered good by the management. Therefore, the same was
provided in the books and shown as an exceptional item in the financial statements of the
Corporation for the year ending 31.03.2019.

Keeping in view of all facts explained above, the financial statements of the Corporation
were prepared and got approved from the Board on 30.09.2019 with a loss of ₹ 7,237.65
lakh for the period ending 31.03.2019. It is pertinent to mention that the Corporation had
taken extension to hold AGM of the Corporation by 31.12.2019.
i) After the approval of audited accounts by the Board, the annual accounts of the
Corporation for the year 2018-19 were also audited by the Office of Comptroller & Auditor
General of India (C&AG).
j) After the completion of Government audit but before issuing its report, we were in receipt
of Minutes of the meeting (of core group of Secretaries chaired by the Cabinet Secretary)
held on 21.10.2019, vide letter no. 9(3)/2017-SME.VOL.II dated 30.10.2019, wherein final
decision was given. The same is reiterated here below:
“After due consideration of the material available and the submissions
made by the two parties, it is decided that UBI shall make good the loss
caused to NSIC on account of dishonouring the bank Guarantee issued
by the Hazara Road Branch and the Jadavpur Vidyapith Branch of UBI
amounting to  173.50 crores.”
As per clause no. 4(A)(ii) of OM no. F.No.4(1)/2013-DPE/FTS-1835 dated 22.05.2018
issued by the Department of Public Enterprises the decision of the Cabinet Secretary will
be final and binding on all concerned.
k) The above decision was received on 30.10.2019 subsequent to the Board meeting (held
on 30.9.2019), wherein accounts were approved but before the adoption at the AGM. This
decision has significant impact on the financial results / profitability as well as state of
affairs of the Corporation as on 31.03.2019, absolves potential threat of recoverability of
said dues from UBI and substantiate the management’s stand of considering the
outstanding amount of ₹ 17057.39 lakh as good.
l) Keeping in view the above, the audited annual accounts of the Corporation for the year
2018-19 have been re-opened and revised to incorporate consequential impact thereof in
the Annual Accounts. As the decision of Cabinet Secretary to make good the loss caused
to NSIC by UBI is binding on all concerned, the outstanding amount of ₹ 17057.39 lakh
recoverable from UBI is good. However, a provision to the tune of ₹5117.22 lakh (30% of
₹ 17057.39 lakh in place of 100%) has been made depending upon the age of the
outstanding dues of ₹ 17057.39 lakh, in line with the applicable RBI Prudential Norms to
depict true and fair view of the financial results.
5. Changes in Accounting policy and impact thereof
a) Risk Fund
Based on the Corporate Governance guidelines on ‘Risk Management’ for Central Public
Sector Enterprises and the possibility of risk of financial loss to the Corporation due to any
reason, the corporation has been creating a risk fund at 0.40% of the outstanding under
the schemes of Raw Material Assistance & Bill Discounting (secured by Bank Guarantee),
Trade Receivables-Marketing (from Central & State Government, Government Institutions
/ Companies / Departments / Bodies) and Term Loan (secured by EMD) by making
appropriation of the profit to mitigate any unforeseen loss arising out of business
transactions till last year.
The total amount of risk fund created till 31st March 2018 amounting to ₹1878.65 Lakhs,
which includes interest earned on funds invested amounting to ₹ 323.34 lakhs and
ploughed back to the fund over the years.
However, during the current financial year 2018-19, the exemption granted to Government
owned NBFCs, regarding applicability of prudential norms of income recognition and asset

classification stands withdrawn by Reserve Bank of India vide its circular no. DNBR (PD)
CC. No. 092/03.10.001/2017-18 dated 31st May 2018 and therefore same has now
become applicable on the Corporation.
Post applicability of prudential norms issued by RBI, the Corporation is now governed by
RBI prudential norms of Income Recognition and Asset Classification and the provisioning
requirement as per the RBI norms is much more than the amount of risk fund created by
the Corporation to mitigate any unforeseen loss arising out of business transactions.
In view of the above, the management is of the view that the requirement of maintaining
the risk fund is no more required. Accordingly, during the year, the corporation has made
the provisions as per RBI prudential norms and reversed the risk fund as at 01.04.2018
amounting to ₹1878.65 lakhs created by way of appropriation of profit and ploughing back
the interest earned on the fund invested in earlier years.
Accordingly, the amount of risk fund represented by interest ploughed back in earlier
years amounting to ₹323.34 lakh has been reversed by crediting to Excess provision
written back in the Statement of Profit & Loss Account and balance amounting to
₹1555.31 lakh representing the profit appropriated in earlier years has been transferred to
Retained Earnings.
b) The Corporation was hitherto recognizing prepaid expenses of items of over ₹ 0.50 lakh
which has now been increased to ₹ 1.00 lakh. Due to change in accounting policy, an
amount of ₹ 4.23 lakhs to be charged to expenses has been adjusted in the retained
earnings on 01.04.2017 and an amount of ₹ 1.61 lakhs has been charged to expenses for
2017-18.
c) The Corporation was hitherto recognizing prior period expenses/revenue of items of over
₹ 0.50 lakh which has now been increased to 0.25 % of the Revenue from Operations. Due
to change in accounting policy, an income of ₹ 24.12 lakhs during 2017-18 which hitherto
shown as prior period has now been recognized under natural heads.
d) Other accounting policies have been reframed for better depiction and understanding for
reader of accounts, in terms of requirements of IndAS and RBI Prudential Norms.
Para-wise disclosure of Applicable Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) are as below:
6. IndAS 2: Inventories
a) The total carrying amounts of inventories as at 31.3.2019 is ₹ 37.75 lakh (PY ₹ 548.14
lakhs) as shown in Note no. 9 of Balance Sheet.
b) There is no reversal or any write-down that is recognized as a reduction in the amounts of
inventories recognized as expense in the period.
c) Nothing out of carrying amounts of inventories has been pledged as security for liabilities
except those disclosed under Note No.15.
d) Inventories are stated to be at lower of Cost or market price and there is no inventory of
which carrying cost is stated at fair value as at 31st March 2019
7. Disclosure as per Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes
a) FY 2018-19
(₹ in Lakhs)

Description

Net
Balance at
01.04.2018

Recognized
in Profit &
Loss A/c

828.50

(25.80)

Recognized
in OCI

Net
Balance at
31.03.2019

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Related to timing difference
depreciation of fixed assets

on

802.70

Discounting
of
Financial
asset/financial liabilities
Fair Value of Investments
Sub-Total
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision
for
Receivables
&
Advances
Employee Benefits
Sub-Total
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

8.05

3.67

79.49
916.04

(22.13)

3901.37

656.88

2858.07
6759.44
5843.40

(735.15)
(78.27)
(56.14)

11.73
(21.93)
(21.93)

57.55
871.98
4558.25

64.83
64.83
86.76

2187.75
6746.00
5874.02

b) FY 2017-18
(₹ in Lakhs)

Description

Net
Balance at
01.04.2017

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation of fixed assets
Discounting
of
Financial
asset/financial liabilities
Fair Value of Investments
Sub-Total
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision
for
Receivables
&
Advances
Employee Benefits
Sub-Total
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Recognized
in Profit &
Loss A/c

Recognized
in OCI

Net
Balance at
31.03.2018

729.06
7.55

99.44
0.50

828.50
8.05

78.84
815.45

99.94

0.65
0.65

79.49
916.04

3940.86
2235.93
6176.79
5361.34

(39.49)
598.34
558.85
458.91

23.80
23.80
23.15

3901.37
2858.07
6759.44
5843.40

Reconciliation between the provision of income tax and amounts computed by applying
the Indian statutory income tax rate to Profit before Taxes
₹ lakhs

Particulars
Profit before Tax
Tax Rate Applicable to a Domestic Company
Computed Tax Expense
Tax Effect of
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Incomes that are not taxable in determining taxable profit
Current Tax Provision
Income Taxes relating to earlier periods
Incremental Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)
Tax Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss
Effective Tax Rate

Mar-19
6342.35
34.94%
2216.02

Mar-18
15215.16
34.61%
5265.97

3091.00
(1057.02)
4250.00
(25.86)
56.15
4280.29
67.49

1037.52
(563.49)
5740.00
7.53
(458.91)
5288.63
34.75

8. IndAS 16 – Property, Plant & Equipment & IndAS 38 – Intangible Assets
a) The title deeds in respect of following properties have not been executed in favour of the
Corporation
(₹ In Lakhs)

S.
No

Particulars of
the Property

Area

1

Land at Technical
Centre Howrah
Flats at Branch
Office Mumbai

49.94 acres

As At 31.03.2019
Gross written down
value value (WDV)
1.60
1.60

3660.00 sqft

11.52

2

5.69

As At 31.03.2018
Gross written down
value value (WDV)
1.60
1.60
11.52

5.87

b) NSIC is having 225.23 Acres of land situated at various locations across the country. The
ownership of all land are in favour of the Corporation and are possessed by the
Corporation except the title deed in respect of land at NTSC-Howrah which has not been
executed in favour of the Corporation, as already mentioned above. Further, land
measuring 3.28 Acres of NTSC-Rajkot is under encroachment by few Industrial Units as
well as unauthorized dwelling units. It is apt to mention that necessary action for removal
of such encroachment is under process.
c) During the year, the Corporation assessed the impairment loss of Assets and is of the
opinion that since the Corporation is a going concern and there is no indication for the
impairment of the Asset, therefore, no provision for impairment loss is required.
d) The Corporation has continued with the carrying value of Property, Plant & Equipment &
Intangible asset at the date of transition to Ind-AS measured as per Indian GAAP .
e) The Corporation has not borrowed any amount for any qualifying asset, the interest of
which is required to be capitalized as per IndAS 23, “Borrowing Cost”. Hence, no interest
has been capitalized during the year.
f) During the current FY, assets having net carrying value of ₹ 8.80 Lakh (Gross carrying
Value ₹ 45.44 Lakhs) has been retired with sale proceeds of ₹ 11.44 Lakh and profit of
₹ 2.64 Lakh has been accounted for. During the FY 2017-18, assets having net carrying
value of ₹ 5.71 Lakh (Gross carrying Value 125.65 Lakhs) has been retired with sale
proceeds of ₹ 36.54 Lakh and profit of ₹ 30.83 Lakh has been accounted for.
9. IndAS 17: Leases
Finance Lease: The Corporation does not have any finance lease neither as a Lessor nor as
a Lessee.
Operating Lease: As a Lessor
Its inter-alia includes space, godown, etc. owned by the Corporation and given on lease
for which rental income is received. The Assets subject to operating lease are included in
Property, Plant & Equipment and depreciated over its useful life. Lease income in respect
of ‘Operating Lease’ is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless where scheduled increase in rent compensates the
lessor for expected inflationary. These lease arrangements are renewable on mutually
agreed terms. There are no restrictions imposed by lease agreements. Hence, the
disclosure of minimum lease is not required as there is no non-cancellable lease.
As a Lessee
The Corporation has taken office space, godown and accommodations for staff on
operating lease for which lease rent payments are made. These lease arrangements are
usually renewable on mutually agreed terms. Such payments (net of recoveries) made are
recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term unless where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for
expected inflationary. There are no restrictions imposed by lease agreement. There are no
subleases. Hence, the disclosure of minimum lease is not required as there is no noncancellable lease.

10. IndAS 19 – Employee Benefits
I. General descriptions of various defined employee's benefits schemes are as under:
i. Defined Contribution Plan
Provident Fund:
The Corporation's Provident Fund is managed by separate trust registered under the
Employees Provident Fund & Misc. Provisions Act 1952 which invests the funds in
permitted securities. The trust fixes the rate of interest based on the notification issued
by the Government of India. The liability is recognized on accrual basis.
With respect to Employee Pension Scheme, the same is managed through Regional
Provident Fund Trust.
ii. Defined Benefit Plan –
(a) Gratuity:
The Corporation has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has
rendered continues service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity @ 15 days
salary (15/26 x last drawn basic pay plus dearness allowance) for each completed
year of service on superannuation, resignation, termination and on death.
(b) Leave:
The Corporation provides for earned leave benefits and half-pay leave to the
employees of the Corporation, which accrue annually at 30 days & 20 days
respectively. Only the leave encashment is encashable once in a calendar year
while in service in case of IDA pattern employees and a maximum of 300 days
(including half pay leaves without commutation) on superannuation.
The liability on this account is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.
(c) Leave Travel Concession (LTC):
The Corporation provides LTC facility to the employees under CDA pattern
employees as per Central Government and for IDA pattern employee the facility is
part of bouquet of perks and allowances and paid along with salary.
The liability on this account for CDA pattern employees is recognized on the basis of
actuarial provision.
(d) TA on Retirement
TA on retirement refers to settlement at home-town or to the place where family of
the retired employee intends to settle in India and includes Baggage Allowance also
The liability on this account is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.
(e) Superannuation Pension Scheme:
Employee's Group Superannuation Pension Scheme is managed by LIC of India.
The Corporation's obligation is limited to pay 10% of Basic Pay plus dearness
allowance of the enrolled employee.
The contribution to the scheme for the period is grouped under Employee Cost on
accrual basis, based on the affordability of the Corporation.

(f) Medical Facility During Service:
The Corporation provides the medical facility for indoor treatment for the serving
employees for self and his/her dependent family members. If the treatment is as per
CGHS rates, all the expenditure on this account is born by the Corporation and if the
treatment is as per hospital rates, employee has to bear 15% of the expenditure
(excluding medicine and implant and defined special disease).
(g) Post-Retirement Medical Facility:
The Corporation has Post-retirement Medical Facility (PRMF), under which retired
employee and the spouse are provided medical facility for indoor treatment through
Mediclaim policy of ₹ 2 Lakh.
The liability on this account is recognized on the basis of accrual basis i.e.2%
contribution on Basic Pay plus dearness allowance in case of employees retired
after 1.1.2007 under IDA pattern employees and 1.5% of PBT in case of employees
retired prior to 1.1.2007, based on the affordability of the Corporation.
II. The prescribed disclosure as per the Actuarial Valuation in respect of the above matters is
given hereunderPlan Liability
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars

CY/PY

EL

Sick
Leave

TA on
Retirement

LTC
0.27
0.25

Gratuity
Present value of obligation
as at the end of the period

CY
PY

4,800.47
4,800.40

2,699.33
2,576.61

415.30
420.65

3.67
3.70

CY/PY

Gratuity

EL

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

232.33
224.07
766.59
232.33
990.66

169.00
158.42
169.00
158.42

Sick
Leave
39.02
34.98
39.02
34.98

TA on
Retirement
0.18
0.18
0.18
0.18

Sick
Leave
32.81
29.20
32.81
29.20

TA on
Retirement
0.29
0.28
0.29
0.28

Service Cost
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost including
curtailment Gains/Losses
Gains or Losses on Nonroutine settlements
Total Service Cost

TC
0.01
0.01
0.01
0.01

Net interest Cost
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars
Interest Cost on Defined
Benefit Obligation
Interest Income on Plan
Assets
Net Interest Cost (Income)

EL

CY/PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

Gratuity
374.43
283.86
374.43
283.86

200.98
171.13
200.98
171.13

LTC
0.02
0.06
0.02
0.06

Change in benefit Obligation
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars
Present value of obligation
as at the
Acquisition adjustment
Interest Cost
Service Cost
Past Service Cost including
curtailment Gains/Losses
Benefits Paid
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss
on Obligation
Present value of obligation
as at the

EL

CY/PY
Gratuity
4,800.40
3,784.76
374.43
283.86
232.33
224.07
766.59
-863.64
-327.55
256.95
68.68
4,800.47
4,800.40

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

2,576.61
2,281.70
200.98
171.13
169.00
158.42
-585.15
-447.54
337.90
412.90
2,699.33
2,576.61

Sick
Leave
420.65
389.36
32.81
29.20
39.02
34.98
-31.93
-11.27
-45.25
-21.63
415.30
420.65

TA on
Retirement
3.70
3.70
0.29
0.28
0.18
0.18
-1.13
-0.56
0.62
0.11
3.67
3.70

LTC

TA on
Retirement
-

LTC

0.25
0.84
0.02
0.06
0.01
0.01
-0.01
-0.66
0.27
0.25

Bifurcation of Actuarial Gain/Loss on Obligation
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars

CY/PY

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on
arising from Change in
Demographic Assumption
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on
arising from Change in
Financial Assumption
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on
arising from Experience
Adjustment

EL

CY
PY

Gratuity
-

-

Sick
Leave
-

CY
PY

14.50
-86.24

9.46
-54.10

1.95
-11.60

-0.01
-0.07

-

CY
PY

242.45
154.92

328.44
467.00

-47.20
-10.03

0.61
0.18

-0.01
-0.66

-

Balance Sheet and related analysis
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars
Present Value of the
obligation at end
Fair value of plan assets
Unfunded
Liability/provision in
Balance Sheet

CY/PY

Gratuity

EL

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

4,800.47
4,800.40
-4,800.47
-4,800.40

2,699.33
2,576.61
-2,699.33
-2,576.61

Sick
Leave
415.30
420.65
-415.30
-420.65

TA on
Retirement
3.67
3.70
-3.67
-3.70

TC
0.27
0.25
-0.27
-0.25

The amounts recognized in the income statement.
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars
Total Service Cost
Net Interest Cost
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss
recognized in the period
Expense recognized in the
Income Statement

CY/PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

EL
Gratuity
232.33
990.66
374.43
283.86
606.76
1,274.51

169.00
158.42
200.98
171.13
337.90
412.90
707.87
742.45

Sick
Leave
39.02
34.98
32.81
29.20
-45.25
-21.63
26.58
42.56

TA on
Retirement
0.18
0.18
0.29
0.28
0.47
0.45

LTC
0.01
0.01
0.02
0.06
0.03
0.07

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars
Net cumulative unrecognized
actuarial gain/(loss) opening
Actuarial gain / (loss) for the
year on PBO
Actuarial gain /(loss) for the
year on Asset
Unrecognized actuarial
gain/(loss) for the period.

EL

CY/PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

Gratuity
-256.95
-68.68
-256.95
-68.68

Sick
Leave
-

-

TA on
Retirement
-0.62
-0.11
-0.62
-0.11

LTC
0.01
0.66
0.01
0.66

Change in Net Defined Benefit Obligation
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars
Net defined benefit liability
at the start of the period
Acquisition adjustment
Total Service Cost
Net Interest cost (Income)
Re-measurements
Contribution paid to the
Fund
Benefit paid directly by the
enterprise
Net defined benefit liability
at the end of the period

EL

CY/PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

Gratuity
4,800.40
3,784.76
232.33
990.66
374.43
283.86
256.95
68.68
-863.64
-327.55
4,800.47
4,800.40

2,576.61
2,281.70
169.00
158.42
200.98
171.13
337.90
412.90
-585.15
-447.54
2,699.33
2,576.61

Sick
TA on
Leave Retirement
420.65
3.70
389.36
3.70
39.02
0.18
34.98
0.18
32.81
0.29
29.20
0.28
-45.25
0.62
-21.63
0.11
-31.93
-1.13
-11.27
-0.56
415.30
3.67
420.65
3.70

LTC
0.25
0.84
0.01
0.01
0.02
0.06
-0.01
-0.66
0.27
0.25

Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting period.
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars

CY/PY

Gratuity

EL

Service Cost

CY
PY
CY
PY
CY
PY

245.97
235.46
372.04
374.43
618.01
609.89

181.19
169.16
209.20
200.98
390.39
370.13

Net Interest Cost
Expected Expense for the
next annual reporting period

Sick
Leave
42.40
39.84
32.19
32.81
74.58
72.65

TA on
Retirement
0.20
0.19
0.28
0.29
0.48
0.48

LTC
0.01
0.01
0.02
0.02
0.03
0.03

Principal assumptions used for actuarial valuation are:
Particulars
Method used
Discount Rate
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Asset
Future Salary Increase
Mortality Rate
Ages (withdrawal Rate (%))
Upto 30 years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

2018-19
2017-18
2016-17
Projected Unit Projected Unit Projected Unit
Credit Method Credit Method Credit Method
7.75
7.80%
7.50%
0
0
0
5.50
5.50
5.50
100% IALM (2006-08)
3
2
1

3
2
1

3
2
1

Sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars

Gratuity

EL

Sick
Leave

TA on
Retirement

LTC

Impact of change in discount rate

4,800.47
-141.92

2,699.33
-92.01

415.30
-18.88

3.67
-0.11

150.20

97.94

20.38

0.11

0.27
0.01
0.01

4,800.47
152.75
-145.53

2,699.33
99.61
-94.34

415.30
18.88
-20.38

Impact due to increase of 0.50%
Impact due to decrease of 0.50%
Impact of change in salary increase
Impact due to increase of 0.50%
Impact due to decrease of 0.50%

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars

Gratuity

EL

Sick
Leave

TA on
Retirement

LTC

0 to 1 year
1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years
3 to 4 years
4 to 5 years
5 to 6 years
6 year onwards

586.44
121.80
175.62
171.61
165.95
141.04
3,438.00

382.18
310.28
210.57
205.85
172.33
162.12
1,356.01

40.98
34.28
17.46
24.87
21.84
18.03
257.84

0.40
0.46
0.24
0.24
0.27
0.19
1.86

0.01
0.26
-

III.

As approved by the Ministry vide letter dated 2.12.2016, Corpus for medical schemes
have been created of NIL lakh (₹248.00 lakh) for the employees retired prior to
1.1.2007 and of ₹ 117.30 lakh (₹96.89 lakh) for the employees retired on or after
1.1.2007, in accordance to the DPE’s guidelines. These corpuses have been utilized
for the payment of premium to Insurance Company to the extent of ₹ 53.11 lakh
(₹86.78 lakh) and ₹ 20.18 lakh (₹28.67 lakh) respectively during the year. The noncreation of corpus for medical schemes for the employees retired prior to 1.1.2007 is
on account of availability of sufficient corpus.

11. IndAS- 21: Effects of change in foreign exchange rates
I. The provision for exchange variation losses for loans under Kreditanstalt West Germany
(KFW) credit lines have been created as per the terms and conditions of the loan
agreements:
a) Under XIth line of credit, provision for exchange variation losses of ₹ 238.59 lakhs (₹
239.19 lakhs) has been created during the year for meeting exchange variation losses.
During the year, the exchange variation loss for Loan was ₹ NIL (₹344.82 lakh) and
provision of ₹ 238.59 lakhs (₹nil) has been written back and utilized for the promotional
activities as per terms and conditions of the loan agreement.
b) The provision for exchange variation losses for loans under KFW credit line XIIth has
been created as per the loan agreement. Under KFW XIIth line of credit, out of the
provision for exchange variation created during the year, 80% of the provision is to be
utilized for meeting exchange variation losses and the balance left out from the 80%, if
any, is to be retained to meet out the exchange variation losses in future.
Accordingly, total provisions amounting to ₹ 278.29 lakhs (₹283.14 lakhs) have been
made during the year for exchange variation under XIIth line of credit, out of which 80%
i.e. ₹ NIL (₹226.51 lakhs) has been utilized against exchange variation loss during the

year and balance 20% i.e. ₹55.66 lakhs (₹56.63 lakhs) has been utilized for
promotional purposes as per terms and conditions of the loan agreement.
During the year, the exchange variation losses for loans was ₹ NIL (₹338.75 lakhs)
which has been adjusted from 80% provision i.e. ₹ NIL (₹226.51 lakhs) and balance
₹NIL (₹112.24 lakhs) has been adjusted from the provision for exchange variation
losses made in the past years. The cumulative retained provision on this account as on
31.03.2019 is ₹1774.98 lakhs including provision of ₹222.63 lakhs for the year
(₹1552.35 lakhs) to meet out exchange variation losses in future.
II. Exchange Difference
(₹ In Lakhs)

S. No
1

2

3

Particulars
2018-19 2017-18
The amount of exchange differences recognised in profit or 142.81 (203.68)
loss except for those arising on financial instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance
with IndAS 109.
Net exchange differences recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
component of equity,
Reconciliation of the amount of such exchange differences
at the beginning and end of the period.

12. IND-AS – 24: Related party disclosures
In compliance of IndAS 24 on related party disclosures, the required information is given
as under:
a) Key Management Personnel
Key Management
Personnel
Shri Ravindra Nath
Shri Sudhir Garg
Smt. Usha Suresh
Shri Ram Mohan Mishra
Shri A K Mittal
Shri P Udayakumar
Ms. Nishtha Goyal

Designation

Chairman-cum-Managing
Director
Director (Finance)
Director (P&M)
Company Secretary

Period
From
To
01.04.2018
30.09.2018
01.10.2018
17.02.2019
18.02.2019
11.03.2019
12.03.2019
Till date
01.04.2018
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
31.03.2019

c) Transactions during the year with related parties
(₹ In Lakhs)

1.

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
2.
a.
b.
c.

Key Management
Relative of Key
Expenditure
Personnel
Management Personnel
2018-19 2017-18
As at
2018-19 2017-18
As at
01.04.17
01.04.17
Salary and Allowances
111.08
90.24
75.81
---Leave/ LTC Encashment
4.42
2.04
3.68
---Provident Fund Contribution
8.11
8.01
6.68
---Contribution
to
Pension
7.06
6.79
5.76
-Scheme
Others
69.63
75.46
50.02
---Lease Rent Paid
------Balance outstanding:
Loan & interest outstanding
------Travelling Advance
4.36
-----Provision
for
Terminal
71.67
105.46
72.37
---Benefits as per Actuarial
Valuation

13. IndAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
i. In accordance with the guidelines of Department of Public Enterprises, ad-hoc provision
on account of Performance Related Pay (PRP) for the year 2018-19 amounting to ₹207.97
lakh (₹ 505.00 lakh) has been made.
ii. In respect of financing scheme, comprising of receivables in respect of dues under Hire
Purchase, Leasing, Raw Material Assistance, Bill Discounting, Term Loan, Composite
Term Loan, banks, etc., amounting to ₹265763.21 lakh, provision of ₹17745.46 lakh has
been made towards impairment loss during the FY 2018-19. The said provisions are
higher of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) assessment (₹243.92 lakh) or RBI norms as per
Non-Banking Financial Company–Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended from time to time (₹17745.46 lakh).
However, for FY 2017-18, against the amount of ₹299798.36 lakh in respect of abovementioned financial assets, provision have been made for ₹10649.13 lakh at higher of
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) assessment or the provisions as per the norms approved by
the Board. It is pertinent to mention that the RBI provisions have made applicable to the
balance sheet ended 31.03.2019.
iii. In respect of non-financing scheme, comprising of receivables in respect of dues under
Marketing activities, receivables on account of transactions at Technical Centers & STPs,
receivables on account of Sale of Services (i.e. receivables for License & Housekeeping
fees, rent, training fees, EMC, TIC, events etc), advances recoverable in cash or in-kind
(primarily consist of advances paid to outside parties including advances paid to bulk
suppliers having MOU with the Corporation), security deposits, staff advances including
interest accrued but not due and other assets amounting to ₹24694.82 lakh (₹22576.76
lakh), provision of ₹364.36 lakh (₹516.78 lakh) has been made for receivables and loans
& advances in line with the norms approved by the Board.
iv. Trade Receivables and Loans & Advances under financing/ non-financing schemes and of
Technical Centers/ STPs comprising of receivables and advances amounting to
₹290458.03 lakh (₹322375.12 lakh), provisions amounting to ₹18109.82 lakh (₹11165.91
lakh) have been made in line with the provisioning norms for receivables and loans &
advances (net of interest suspense account and cash collateral available with the
Corporation) of Financing/ Non-Financing Schemes as per IndAS or as per IRAC
prudential norms issued by RBI.
v. The above provisions include 7 cases of forged Bank Guarantees (BGs) amounting to
₹1600 lakh that was detected during the month of June 2016, at BO Abdul Hamid Street
and BO Salt Lake, located in Kolkata. Immediately, complaints were lodged with CBI,
Kolkata. However, 100% provision was made for the outstanding dues amounting to ₹
1473 lakh.
Further, during the process of obtaining reconfirmation, it was found in case of one unit at
NSIC BO Ghaziabad, the bank guarantees of ₹ 500 lakh reported to have not been issued
by the branch of Bank of Baroda. 100% provision of ₹447.30 lakh was made for the
amount receivable from the unit, after adjusting amount received during May, 2017. This
case is under investigation of CBI.
Moreover, at Branch office Madurai, 100% provision of ₹ 362.84 lakh towards outstanding
amount exceeding the Bank Guarantee Value during FY 2015-16 was made which has
now been reduced to ₹ 326.29 lacs lakh as at 31st March’2019 after considering the
recovery of ₹ 36.55 lakh during the period 1st April’2016 to 31st March’2019. Similarly, at
Branch office Guwahati, 100% provision of ₹ 533.93 lakh towards outstanding amount
exceeding the Bank Guarantee Value during FY 2016-17 was made which has now been
reduced to ₹ 528.77 lakh as at 31st March’2019 after considering the recovery of ₹ 5.16
lakh during the period 2017-18 and 2018-19.

14. IndAS 105 -Non-Current Asset Held for Sale and discontinued Operations
No assets have been classified as held for sale in accordance with IndAS 105
15. IndAS 108 – Operating Segments
a) Segment Reporting: NSIC’s activities are broadly classified into ‘Promotional’ and ‘Commercial’. The
‘Promotional’ activities include the activities for which budgetary support is provided to the
Corporation by the Government and / or its agencies. The schemes of ‘Marketing
Assistance Scheme for MSMEs’, ‘Assistance for Training to Institutions’ and ‘National
Schedule Caste - Schedule Tribe Hub’ etc., for which budgetary support has been
provided to the Corporation along with administrative expenditure restricted to the tune of
10% of the total expenditure under MAS and 7.5% of the total expenditure under NSSH
Scheme for implementation of such schemes, get reflected under the ‘Promotional’
activity. The expenses towards organization / participation in exhibitions (both domestic
and international), buyer sellers meet, intensive campaigns, other marketing support
services (advertisement, publicity etc.) and training expenses are met out of the budgetary
support provided for the above schemes.
The ‘Commercial’ activities inter-alia includes the activities whereby the Corporation
provides ‘Marketing (including tender marketing and Raw Material Assistance/
Distribution)’, ‘Credit’, ‘Technology’ and ‘other support’ services to cater to the diverse
needs of the MSMEs. The Corporation funds these ‘Integrated’ support services. In
addition, activities not met out of the budgetary support but which are promotional in
nature (since carried out with the intent to support the MSMEs) are merged with
commercial activities as the expenses of such activities are borne by the Corporation.
Accordingly, the activities of the Corporation have been divided into two segments namely
“Commercial” & “Promotional”.
The following table presents the revenue, profit/(loss), assets and liabilities information to
the Business segments for the year ended 31st March, 2019 as required by (IndAS - 108)
on “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.
(₹ in Lakh)

Description
Primary Segment – Business
Segment
I. SEGMENT REVENUE
a. Segment Revenue (including
grant)
-Sale of Product
-Sale of Services
-Others
-Total
II. RESULTS
a. Segment Results
b. Operating Profit before
interest
c. Interest Paid
d. Exceptional items

For the year ended 31.03.2019
Promotional
Commercial
Total

205,780.73
6,311.86
41,573.29
253,665.88

205,780.73
6,430.33
47,164.53
259,375.59

2062.06
22179.69

9,926.53
28,616.28

9,926.53
28,616.28

15,837.34
0.00

15,837.34
0.00

13,401.12
-

13,401.12
-

e. Profit before Tax

6342.35

6342.35

15,215.16

15,215.16

f. Tax Expense

4280.29

4280.29

5,288.63

5,288.63

g. Profit after Tax

2062.06

2062.06

9,926.53

9,926.53

h. Other Comprehensive Income
i. Total Comprehensive Income
{Comprising Profit /(Loss) and
Other Comprehensive Income}

(171.79)
1890.27

(171.79)
1890.27

18.88
9,945.41

18.88
9,945.41

291265.35

294413.09

327,501.25

331,527.07

III. ASSETS & LIABILITIES
a. Segment Assets
b. Unallocated Assets

72.32
5,649.56
5,721.88

3,147.74

207,452.92
7,179.85
40,147.00
254,779.77

207,452.92
7,252.17
45,796.56
260,501.65

2062.06
22179.69

For the year ended 31.03.2018
Promotional
Commercial
Total

21793.03

118.47
5,591.24
5,709.71

4,025.82

18,823.18

c. Total Assets

3,147.74

291265.35

316206.12

4,025.82

327,501.25

350,350.25

d. Segment Liabilities
e. Unallocated Liabilities

4,900.47

206,726.46

211,626.93
104579.16

3,949.70

241,150.89

245,100.59
105,249.66

f. Total Liabilities
IV. OTHER INFORMATION
(a) Cost incurred during the
period to acquire fixed assets
(including CWIP)
(b) Depreciation #
(c) Non-cash expenditure other
than depreciation

4,900.47

206,726.46

316206.12

3,949.70

241,150.89

350,350.25

335.34

598.38

933.72

1,919.59

1,101.74

3,021.33

361.30
-

665.09
7055.81

1,026.39
7055.81

252.87
-

569.18
398.74

822.05
398.74

# The depreciation of promotion segment is charged to capital reserve.

b) Information about Revenue from major products and services (₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
March 31, 2019
March 31, 2018
Sale of Product
207452.92
205780.73
Interest Income
33734.15
35905.88
c) The Corporation does not have any reportable geographical segment as the lending
operations of the Corporation are carried out within the country.
d) No single borrower has contributed 10% or more to the Corporation’s revenue during the
financial year 2018-19 and 2017-18.
16. IndAS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Component wise revenue of Corporation
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Sale of products
Sale of services
Interest Income
Processing fee
Other operating Income
TOTAL

Year ended
31 March 2019
207452.92
7252.17
33734.15
5275.91
992.27
254707.42

Year ended
31 March 2018
205780.73
6430.33
35905.88
5188.98
361.76
253667.68

17. Recent accounting pronouncements
a) IndAS 116 – Leases
IndAS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, IndAS 17 Leases. IndAS 116 sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for
both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting
model for lessees. A lessee recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. IndAS 116
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IndAS 17.
The Corporation is currently evaluating the impact on account of implementation of IndAS
116.
b) IndAS 12
IndAS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March 30, 2019,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified IndAS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit
(or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under IndAS 12.

The effective date for adoption of IndAS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2019. The Corporation is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on
the financial statements.
Amendment to IndAS 12 – Income taxes: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in IndAS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection
with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall
recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those
past transactions or events.
Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after
April 1st, 2019. The Corporation is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the
financial statements.
c) IndAS 19- Plan Amendment, curtailment or settlement:
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to IndAS 19,
‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and
settlements. The amendments require an entity to use updated assumptions to determine
current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement; and to recognize in profit or loss as part of past
service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that
surplus was not previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling.
Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after
April 1, 2019. The Corporation is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the
financial statements.
18. Asset Liability Management-Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities
(₹ in Lakh)

As at 31.03.2019

Net
Advances

Investments

Borrowings
Domestic

Upto 30/31 days
114621.90
Over 1-month upto
48561.93
2 months
Over 2 months
84833.92
upto 3 months
Over 3 months
upto 6 months
Over 6 months &
upto 1 year
Over 1 year & upto
3 years
Over 3 year & upto
5 years
Over 5 years

Foreign

Foreign Currency
Items
Assets Liabilities

171383.76

116.10
19.84
135.94
543.76
543.76
234.69

3908.60
(₹ in Lakh)

As at 31.03.2018

Net
Advances

Investments

Borrowings
Domestic

Upto 30/31 days
196591.47
Over 1-month upto
92557.76
2 months
Over 2 months
upto 3 months
Over 3 months

Foreign

205113.52

119.24
20.38

Foreign Currency
Items
Assets Liabilities

upto 6 months
Over 6 months &
139.62
upto 1 year
Over 1 year & upto
558.46
3 years
Over 3 year & upto
558.47
5 years
Over 5 years
235.68
4293.54
(Advances refer to receivables under Hire Purchase, Leasing, Raw Material Assistance, Bills
Discounting, Composite Term Loan, Term Loan, banks, etc).
19. Financial Instruments
A. Capital Management
For the purpose of the Corporation’s capital management, capital includes issued equity
capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Corporation. The primary objectives of the Corporation’s capital management are
safety and security of share capital and maximize the shareholder wealth.
Regulatory capital-related information is presented as part of the RBI mandated
disclosures. The RBI norms require capital to be maintained at prescribed levels.
The Corporation has complied with all the capital requirements over the reported period.
B. Financial Risk Management
The Corporation is exposed to several risks which are inherent to the environment that it
operates in. The Corporation is into business of extending financial assistance to MSME
sector a) Credit risk
(i) The Corporation is exposed to credit risk primarily through its lending operations.
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as these are held with Scheduled
commercial public sector banks and private sector banks. As regards investments,
the Corporation has very minimal investments in equity instruments which is of
strategic in nature. Part of which, the Corporation has already made provision
towards impairment allowance and balance has been fair valued and gain thereon
has been accounted for int the books.
For management of credit risks in an effective manner, Corporation has established
an appraisal mechanism containing guidelines in order to ensure timely repayments
of principal & interest amount. The Corporation manages and controls credit risk by
setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties
and concentration thereof and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits, by
obtaining conduct of account from the banks and collaterals which includes
government / guarantees of scheduled commercial public sector banks.
The Corporation has a credit risk in terms of the credit support provided for raw
material procurement by making the payment to supplier in Raw Material Assistance
scheme against Bank Guarantee
(ii) Significant estimates and judgements
Impairment of financial assets:
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The Corporation uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the

Corporation’s past history and conduct of account with other bank, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
At the date of transition to IndAS, an entity shall use reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk
at the date that financial instruments were initially recognized and compare that to
the credit risk at the date of transition to IndAS.
Corporation has adopted policy to recognize impairment loss (ECL) in books as
higher of provision as per IndAS 109 or as per RBI guidelines.
Corporation has categorized all loans in three stages:
Stage-1 – Performing (not deteriorated significantly since its initial recognition)
Stage-2 – Under Performing (deteriorated significantly since its initial recognition)
Stage-3 – Non performing (Objective evidence of impaired)
ECL is calculated based on past ten year’s data as follows:
ECL= Probability of Default (PD) X Loss given default (LGD)
Probability of Default (PD) is calculated as NPA accretion over last 10 years to total
loan accretion over last 10 years in percentage terms.
Loss given Default is calculated as loss of principal during last 10 years to total
NPAs during the last 10 years in percentage terms.
The Corporation considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit risk
when the borrower crosses 30 DPD but is within 90 DPD.
Provision for expected credit losses

Level

Stage 1

Stage 2
Stage 3

Category

Description of category

Assets where counter party has
Standard
Assets, strong capacity to meet the
High quality assets, obligations and where risk of
negligible credit risk
default is nil or negligible/
regularly paying assets
Increased
Risk Assets where there has been a
Assets or Assets significant increase in credit risk
having significant risk since initial recognition.
Impaired Assets

Basis for
recognition
of expected
credit loss
provision
Loans
12-month
ECL

Life
ECL

time

Life time ECL

b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity is the risk that suitable sources of funding for Corporation's business activities
may not be available. The Corporation's objective is to maintain optimum level of
liquidity to meet its cash requirements. The Corporation closely monitors its liquidity
position and maintains adequate sources to finance its short term and long-term fund
requirements, whenever required.

(i) Financing arrangements
The Corporation had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the
reporting period:
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Floating rate
Expiring within one year (bank overdraft
and other facilities)

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

83.76

1-Apr-17

1.34

0.84

Corporation has cash credit facility from banks at floating rate of interest which is renewed
every year.
(ii) Maturity profile of financial liabilities
The tables below analyses the Corporation’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity
based on their contractual maturities for: all non-derivative financial liabilities for which
the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows: The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting
is not significant: (₹ in lakh)
Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities

Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities

Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1 April 2017

Particulars

Bank
Market
Total
Borrowings Borrowings
1 day to 30/31
days
(one
month
Over
one
month to 2
months
Over 2 months
upto 3 months

171383.76

Bank
Market
Total
Borrowings Borrowings

171383.76

205113.52

205113.52

116.10

116.10

119.24

119.24

19.84

19.84

20.38

20.38

135.94

135.94

139.62

139.62

543.76

543.76

558.46

558.46

Over 3 years
to 5 years

543.76

543.76

558.47

558.47

Over 5 years

3908.60

3908.60

4293.54

4293.54

Over 3 months
to 6 months
Over 6 months
to 1 year
Over 1 year to
3 years

Bank
Borrowings

Market
Borrowings

121221.88

100000

Total
121221.88

103.25

100103.25

17.64

17.64

120.89

120.89

483.56

483.56

483.56

483.56

3959.39

3959.39

c) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: - interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument, denominated in foreign currency other than the functional currency, will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange ratees.
The Corporation is exposed to foreign currency risk mainly on its borrowings denominated
in foreign currency. The carrying amount of the Corporation’s foreign currency
denominated borrowings is as follows(₹ in lakh)

As at 31.03.2019
Description In foreign
Currency
(Euro)

Kfw-XI
Kfw-XII
ILC

As at 31.03.2018

In functional
Currency (₹
in lakh)

2856076.41
2974696.21
827462.98

2259.73
2353.58
654.69

In foreign
Currency
(Euro)

As at 01.04.2017

In
functional
Currency (₹
in lakh)

3100474.01
3023780.15
877612.20

2519.45
2457.12
713.14

In foreign
Currency
(Euro)

3226251.81
3191483.89
927761.42

In functional
Currency (₹
in lakh)

2269.99
2245.53
652.77

Foreign currency risk monitoring and managementThe loan agreements entered into by the Corporation takes care of the exchange
fluctuation risk and the entire amount of exchange fluctuation loss if any gets adjusted by
way of relief in the coupon payment. Further, it also secures the future losses on account
of exchange fluctuation.
Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis
The loan agreements entered into by the Corporation takes care of the exchange
fluctuation risk and the entire amount of exchange fluctuation loss if any gets adjusted by
way of relief in the coupon payment. Further, it also secures the future losses on account
of exchange fluctuation. Hence, no sensitivity analysis has been carried out.
(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Corporation's exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the short-term borrowings.
Market interest rate risk is mitigated by proper review of market conditions, factors etc.
The Corporation’s borrowings are carried at amortized cost.
(a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Corporation’s short-term borrowings to interest rate changes at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:
(₹ in lakh)

Particulars
Variable
borrowings

31 March 2019
rate

31 March 2018

1 April 2017

83.76

1.34

0.84

Fixed rate borrowings

171300.00

205112.18

221221.04

Total borrowings

171383.76

205113.52

221221.88

(b) Sensitivity
As the maximum short-term borrowings of the Corporation are fixed costs, so they are not
subject to interest rate risk as defined in IndAS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor
the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.
(iii) Price risk
(a) Exposure
The Corporation’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held
by the Corporation and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through OCI. Though
diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Corporation.
However, the Corporation is not regular in investing funds and has only made certain
strategic investment in the past. Part of which has been fully impaired and provisions
have already been made and remining has been fair valued and gains thereof has been
properly accounted for.
(b) Sensitivity
The Corporation has a very minimal amount of investment in equity and there is no
movement in the past two years. As aforesaid, the Corporation has already fair valued its
quoted investment in equity and gains thereof has been properly accounted for and for the
remaining part of investment, provisions have been made fully. Hence, sensitivity not
required to be disclosed.
Equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity instrument classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income.
C. Fair Value Measurements
Some of the Corporation’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following tables gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used)
Fair value hierarchy
Financial Instruments Measured and Recognized at Fair Value (FVTOCI & FVTPL).
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
I. FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial Investments at FVTOCI
Investment
in
Equity
Instruments
Financial Investments at FVTPL
TOTAL
II. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL

Amount at Fair Value
as at 31
as at 1
as at 31
March
April
March 2019
2018
2017

234.69

-

235.68

-

Fair
Value
Hierarchy

235.34

-

Level 1

Valuation
Techniques &
Significant
Inputs

Quoted
price

market

Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortized Cost.
(₹ in Lakh)
As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

As at 1 April 2017

Particulars
Amortized
Cost
I.
FINANCIAL
ASSETS
Loan
to
Companies/LLP

239561.78

Fair Value

239561.78

Amortize
d Cost

Fair Value

277013.86

277013.86

302136.25

302136.25

Level 3
Level 2

75.46

75.46

88.59

116.55

116.55

TOTAL
II.
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

239637.24

239637.24

277102.45

277102.45

302252.80

302252.80

176651.76

176651.76

210803.2
3

210803.23

226390.17

226390.17

210803.23

210803.23

TOTAL

176651.76

176651.76

Valuation
Techniques &
Significant Inputs

Fair Value

Loan to Employees

Borrowings

88.59

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value
Hierarchy

Level 3
226390.17

Effective
Interest
Rate
NPV at SBI Rate for
Perquisites

Effective
rate

Interest

226390.17

Fair value measurements under IndAS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value are observable and significance to the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Corporation can access at measurement date.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs) that the Corporation can access at measurement date.
Table showing Carrying Value and Fair Value of all Financial Assets and Liabilities.
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

as at 31 March 2019
Carrying
Fair Value
Value

as at 31 March 2018
Carrying
Fair Value
Value

as at 1 April 2017
Carrying
Fair Value
Value

6650.92
2813.02
19256.64
239637.24
234.69
12496.82

6650.92
2813.02
19256.64
239637.24
234.69
12496.82

4139.83
1912.13
16291.45
277102.45
235.68
18547.58

4139.83
1912.13
16291.45
277102.45
235.68
18547.58

4547.28
4965.49
12288.49
302252.80
235.34
853.01

4547.28
4965.49
12288.49
302252.80
235.34
853.01

281089.33

281089.33

318229.12

318229.12

325142.41

325142.41

20486.74
176651.76
11670.12
208808.62

20486.74
176651.76
11670.12
208808.62

18512.25
210803.23
9820.33
239135.81

18512.25
210803.23
9820.33
239135.81

13000.82
226390.17
14294.91
253685.90

13000.82
226390.17
14294.91
253685.90

I. FINANCIAL ASSETS
- Cash & Cash Equivalent
- Bank Balance
- Receivables
- Loans & Advances
- Investments
- Other Financial Assets
TOTAL
II. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
- Payables
- Borrowings
- Other financial liabilities
TOTAL

The carrying amount of the cash & cash equivalent, receivables, payables, other financial
assets & other financial liabilities are considered as their fair values due to their short-term
nature.

20. IndAS – 101 First time Adoption of IndAS
The Corporation followed the provisions of IndAS 101 in preparing its opening IndAS
Balance Sheet as on the date of transition, viz., 1st April 2017. Some of the Corporation’s
IndAS Accounting Policies used in the opening Balance Sheet differed from its Indian GAAP
Accounting Policies applied as at 31st March 2017 and accordingly the adjustments were
made to restate the opening balances as per IndAS. The resulting adjustments, arising from
events and transactions before the date of transition to IndAS, were recognized directly
through retained earnings as at 1st April 2017 as required by IndAS 101.
In accordance with IndAS-101- “First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards” (IndAS
101), the Corporation has presented a reconciliation of shareholders equity under Previous
GAAP and IndAS at 31st March, 2018 and 1st April, 2017 and as of the Net Profit as per
Previous GAAP and Total Comprehensive Income under IndAS for the year ended March 31,
2018.
1. First time adoption – Exceptions and Exemptions
A. Exemptions
Deemed Cost for Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Corporation has availed exemption under para D7AA of appendix D to Ind-AS 101
which permits a first-time adopter to continue with the carrying values for its PPE and
intangible assets as at date of transition to Ind-AS measured as per previous IGAAP.
B. Exceptions
a) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
The Corporation has applied Para B2, which permit first-time adopter to apply derecognition requirements in Ind-AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or
after the date of transition to Ind-AS.
b) Classification & measurement of financial assets:
The Corporation has followed classification and measurement of financial assets in
accordance with Ind-AS 109 and classification of Financial Instruments have been
made on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed at the date of transition to
Ind-AS.
c) Estimates
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind-AS at the date of transition shall be
consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous IGAAP
(after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

I.

Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as previously reported under IGAAP to IndAS

Particulars

ASSETS
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash
equivalents
(b) Bank Balances other
than (a) above
(c) Investments
(d) Trade Receivables
(e) Loans & Advances
(f) Other financial assets
Total (A)
Non-financial Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Current tax Assets
(Net)
(c) Deferred Tax Assets
(Net)
(d) Plant, Property and
Equipment
(e) Capital Work in
Progress
(f) Intangible Assets
(e) Other non-financial
assets
Total (B)
Total Assets (A+B)
LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables
(c) Other financial liabilities
Total(A)
Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions
(b) Other non-financial
liabilities
Total(B)
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity
Total(C)
Total Liabilities and
Equity(A+B+C)

Refer
Note
No.

Balance Sheet as at 01 April 2017
IGAAP *
Adjustments
IndAS

4547.29

(e)
(i)
(i)

0.00

4547.29

4139.84

4965.49

0.00

4965.49

7.54
12288.49
285229.83
17941.08
324979.72

227.80
0.00
-34.41
-30.70
162.69

235.34
12288.49
285195.42
17910.38
325142.41

689.51

0.00

148.54

0.00

5447.73

(c)

(i)

(₹ in lakh)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018
IGAAP *
Adjustments
IndAS

0.00

4139.84

1912.13

0.00

1912.13

6.03
16291.45
277165.76
18568.75
318083.96

229.65
0.00
-63.32
-21.17
145.16

235.68
16291.45
277102.44
18547.58
318229.12

689.51

548.14

0.00

548.14

148.54

14.29

0.00

14.29

-86.39

5361.34

5930.94

-87.54

5843.40

7597.57

0.00

7597.57

10645.98

0.00

10645.98

12606.15

0.00

12606.15

12756.46

0.00

12756.46

148.11

0.00

148.11

202.24

0.00

202.24

1650.20

30.18

1680.38

2085.89

24.73

2110.62

28287.81
353267.53

-56.21
106.48

28231.60
353374.01

32183.94
350267.90

-62.81
82.35

32121.13
350350.25

226390.17
13000.82
14347.43
253738.42

0.00
0.00
-52.51
-52.51

226390.17
13000.82
14294.92
253685.91

210803.24
18512.25
9901.72
239217.21

0.00
0.00
-81.40
-81.40

210803.24
18512.25
9820.32
239135.81

11887.64

-3762.68

8124.96

11682.07

0.00

11682.07

(b)

4730.10

0.00

4730.10

4562.75

0.00

4562.75

16617.74

-3762.68

12855.06

16244.82

0.00

16244.82

53298.80
29612.57
82911.37

0.00
3921.67
3921.67

53298.80
33534.24
86833.04

53298.80
41507.07
94805.87

0.00
163.75
163.75

53298.80
41670.82
94969.62

353267.53

106.48

353374.01

350267.90

82.35

350350.25

(C)

*The IGAAP figures have been regrouped & reclassified in conformity with the IndAS requirements.

II.

Reconciliation statement of Profit & Loss (Incl OCI) as previously reported under
IGAAP to IndAS
(₹ in lakh)

Particulars
I. Revenue from Operations
a) Sale of products
b) Sale of services
c) Interest Income
d) Processing fee
e) Other operating Income
Total Revenue from operations
II. Other Income
III. Grant & Subsidies
Total Revenue (I+II+III)

Refer Note
No.

(i)

(j)

Year Ended 31 March 2018
IGAAP*
Adjustments
IndAS
205780.73
6430.33
35844.17
5188.98
361.76
253605.97
85.84
5591.24
259283.05

0.00
0.00
61.71
0.00
0.00
61.71
30.83
0.00
92.54

205780.73
6430.33
35905.88
5188.98
361.76
253667.68
116.67
5591.24
259375.59

Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in trade
Changes in inventories
Employee Benefits Expenses
Finance Cost
Depreciation and amortization
expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility
Others expenses
IV. Total Expenses
V. Profit/(loss) before
exceptional items and tax (III-IV)

204620.17
119.97
13135.64
13340.85
569.18

0.00
0.00
-68.01
60.27
0.00

204620.17
119.97
13067.62
13401.12
569.18

302.95
12082.14
244170.90
15112.16

0.00
2.72
-10.46
103.00

302.95
12079.42
244160.43
15215.16

92.83
15204.98

-92.83
10.17

0.00
15215.16

5740.00
-483.20
7.53
5264.33
9940.66

0.00
24.30
0.00
24.30
-14.13

5740.00
-458.90
7.53
5288.63
9926.53

(d), (g)

-4.27

-4.27

(e)

23.15
0.00

23.15

0.00

18.88

18.88

Subtotal (B)
Other Comprehensive Income
(A+B)

0.00
0.00

0.00
18.88

0.00
18.88

Total Comprehensive Income
for the period (IX+X)

9940.66

4.76

9945.41

VI. Exceptional Items
VII. Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)
VIII. Tax Expense
(i) Current tax
(ii) Deferred tax
(iii) Earlier years
Total tax expense
IX. Profit/(loss) for the period
(VII-VIII)

(d)
(i)

(d), (h)

(j)

(e)

X. Other Comprehensive
Income
(A) (i) Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined
benefit plans/ fair valuation of
Investments: Less: Deferred Tax on Above
- Gain on sale of investments in
equity shares
Subtotal (A)
(B) (i) Items that will be classified
to profit or loss: -Gain /(Loss) on change in fair
valuation of investments in equity
shares/debt instrument

*The IGAAP figures have been regrouped & reclassified in conformity with the IndAS requirements.

III.

Reconciliation of total equity
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Total Equity as previously reported under IGAAP
(Equity share capital + Other Equity)
Adjustments:
Add: Reversal of proposed dividend (including CDT)
Add: Gain on fair valuation of Equity Instruments.
(Net of Tax)
Add: Net Discounting Impact on Financial
Assets/Liabilities (Net of Tax)
Less: Prepaid Expense charged off due to change in
accounting policy
Total Adjustment
Total Equity as per IndAS
(Equity share capital + Other Equity)

IV.

As at 31 March
2018
94805.87

0.00
150.16
15.20
-1.61

As at 01 April
2017
82911.36
0.00
0.00
3762.68
148.95
14.27

163.75

4.23
3921.67

94969.62

86833.04

Notes to First time adoption
As the presentation requirements under IGAAP differ from IndAS, the IGAAP information
has been regrouped for ease and facilitation of reconciliation with IndAS
a) Non-current Financial assets/liabilities- Under previous GAAP, certain non-current
financial assets/liabilities which were measured at cost at the Balance Sheet date
without considering the effect of discounting whereas these are measured at the
present value on the Balance Sheet date under IndAS. Accordingly, the Corporation
has recognized the adjustment due to the unwinding of the discounting impact in the
respective carrying amount and its consequent impact on income/expenditure. The
corresponding impact on the date of transition has been recognized in other equity in
Note 20.
b) Proposed dividend on equity shares recommended by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation (‘proposed dividend’) was recognized as a liability in the financial
statements in the period to which it relates. Under IndAS, such dividend is recognized
as a liability when approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. The
Corporation accordingly, has de-recognized the proposed dividend liability as on
01.04.2017 with the corresponding increase being recognized in equity.
c) In IGAAP, deferred taxes were recognized for the tax effect of timing differences
between accounting income and taxable income for the year i.e., income statement
approach. However, under IndAS - 12 “deferred taxes” are computed for temporary
differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet
and their respective tax base i.e. balance sheet approach due to which following
adjustments are made.

•

Corporation has recognized the deferred tax liability for ₹79.49 lakh as at
31st
st
March, 2018 (₹78.84 lakh as at 1 April, 2017) on fair valuation changes in
investments.

•

Corporation has recognized the deferred tax liability for ₹8.05 lakh as at 31st March
2018 (Rs.7.55 lakh as at 1st April, 2017) on Net financial impact on account of
discounting of certain financial assets and liabilities

d) As per IGAAP as well as per Ind-AS, the Corporation recognized costs related to its
post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. In IGAAP, the entire cost,
including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind-AS,
remeasurements (comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
e) In IGAAP, the Corporation had accounted long term investments in unquoted and
quoted equity shares as investment measured at cost less diminution (other than
temporary) in value of investments.
For investments categorized at FVTOCI Corporation has recognized fair value
changes through as a separate component of equity for Rs.47.63 lakh as at 31 March
2018 (₹ 227.80 lakh as at 1 April 2017) (FVOCI reserve) as at the date of transition
and correspondingly investment has been increased by same amount.
f)

Retained earnings as at 1st April 2017 has been adjusted consequent to the above
IndAS transition adjustments. Refer ‘Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2018
and 1st April 2017’ given at Note No.20.

g) In IGAAP, the Corporation has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI)
separately. Items that have been reclassified from statement of profit and loss to other
comprehensive income includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans and fair
value gain/loss on equity instruments measured at FVTOCI. Hence, IGAAP profit or
loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per IndAS.
The following items have been reclassified to OCI:(i) Gain on equity instruments measured at FVTOCI has been classified to OCI of
₹47.63 lakh
(ii) Actuarial Gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan has been reclassified to OCI of
₹68.12lakh
h) Prepaid expenses to the tune of ₹4.23 lakh has been charged to retained earnings as
at 01.04.2017 due to change in accounting policy in respect thereof. The Corporation
was hitherto not accounting for prepaid expenses up to ₹0.50 Lakh per item and was
charging off to profit & Loss account in the year of incurrence. However, the same has
now been increased to ₹1.00 Lakh to make it uniform and comparable.
i)

Under previous GAAP, certain non-current financial assets/liabilities which were
measured at cost/best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, at
the Balance Sheet date without considering the effect of discounting whereas these
are measured at the present value on the Balance Sheet date under Ind AS.
Accordingly, the Corporation has recognized the adjustment to the respective carrying
amount and the consequent impact on finance cost/finance income due to the
unwinding of the Discounting impact. The corresponding impact on the date of
transition has been recognized in equity.

j)

V.

An amount of ₹30.83 lakh towards gain on disposal of fixed assets and ₹62.00 lakh
towards gain on sale of long-term investments which was shown under the head
exceptional items in Statement of Profit & loss account in previous year has been
shown during the current financial year under the head Other income and other
comprehensive income respectively, as per the disclosure requirement of IndAS.

Effect of adoption of IndAS on Cash Flow Statement for year ended 31 March 2018
Explanation of material adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows There were no material
differences between the Statement of Cash Flows presented under IndAS and the
previous GAAP except due to various re-classification adjustments recorded under IndAS
and difference in the definition of cash and cash equivalents under these two GAAPs.

21. Proposed Dividend: The dividend proposed for the year is as follows:
Particulars
On Equity shares of ₹100 each
-Amount of Dividend Proposed (₹ In lakh)
-Rate of Dividend (%)
-Dividend per equity share (₹)

Year ended
31.03.2019

Year ended
31.03.2018

635.47
1.19
1.19

2837.24
5.32
5.32

Dividends proposed by the Corporation are based on Profits after Tax as reported in the
financial statements of the Corporation and guidelines issued by Department of Investment
& Public Asset Management (DIPAM). The Board of Directors of the Corporation proposed
a final dividend of ₹635.47 lakh (₹1.19 per share) in respect of the year ending 31st March
2019 subject to approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. If approved, the
dividend would result in cash outflow of ₹ 766.12 Lakh inclusive of dividend tax of ₹130.65
Lakh.
Further, Corporate dividend and dividend distribution tax pertaining to financial year ended
31 March 2019, shall be accounted for in the ensuing financial year after approval of
Shareholders at Annual General Meeting in accordance with revised Accounting Standard
(AS) - 4 'Contingencies and Events occurring after Balance Sheet date' as notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs through amendments to Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016, dated March 30, 2016.
22. The additional information required to be disclosed vide RBI norms
A. RBI norms as per Non-Banking Financial Company –Systematically Important NonDeposit taking Company (Reserve bank) Directions, 2016 as amended from time to time
have been made applicable to the balance sheet ended 31.03.2019. Accordingly, for FY
ended 31st March 2019, disclosures regarding NPA etc. have been made in respect of
financial assets comprising of receivables in respect of dues under Hire Purchase,
Leasing, Raw Material Assistance, Bill Discounting, Term Loan, Composite Term Loan
etc. at higher of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) assessment or RBI norms.
However, for FY ended 31st March 2018, corresponding amount in respect of abovementioned financial assets have been shown at higher of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
assessment or the provisions as per the norms approved by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation since RBI Prudential norms are not applicable till the FY ended 31st March
2018.
B. Rating Assigned by Credit Rating Agencies for the Borrowings of NSIC
The Commercial paper issued by NSIC were rated by CRISIL and ACUITE as “A1+” which
is considered to have “Very Strong Degree of Safety”. In addition, Bank Facilities of the
Corporation has been rated by CARE and the rating is “AA+” which is considered to have

high degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. There has been
no migration of ratings during the year.
C. Penalties levied by the Regulator

-

NIL

D. Capital Adequacy
Particulars
i) CRAR (%)
ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%)
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%)
iv) Amount of Subordinate debt raised as
Tier-II Capital
v) Amount raised by issue of perpetual
debt instruments

Year Ended 31
March 2019
25.14
24.78
0.36

Year Ended 31
March 2018
21.11
20.52
0.60

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

a) Investments: NSIC does not hold any investment outside India.
b) Break up of Investments
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
1
(i)
(a)
(b)
(ii)
(a)
(b)
(iii)
(a)
(b)
(2)
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(3)
(4)
(5)

Value of investments
Gross Value of Investments
In India
at fair value through OCI
Outside India
Provision for Depreciation
In India
Outside India
Net value of investments
In India
Outside India
Movement of provisions held towards on
investments
Opening Balance
Add: Provisions made during the year
Less: write-off/ write-back of excess
provisions during the year
Closing balance
Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments
Aggregate provision for diminution in value
of investments

Year ended
31.03.2019

Year ended
31.03.2018

249.69

250.68

15.00

15.00

234.69

235.68

15.00

15.00

15.00
234.69
234.69
15.00
15.00

15.00
235.68
235.68
15.00
15.00

c) Valuation of Investments
(₹ in Lakh)

Year ended
Particulars
31.03.2019
i) Gross Value of Investments
250.68
ii) Allowance for Impairment Loss
15.00
iii) Fair Value Change (Net)
(0.99)
iv) Net Value of Investments
234.69
Movement in Fair Value changes of investment (Net)
Opening Balance
235.68
Add: Increase in Value
Less: Decrease in Value
0.99

Year ended
31.03.2018
203.05*
15.00
47.63
235.68
188.05*
47.63

Year ended
Year ended
31.03.2019
31.03.2018
Closing Balance
234.69
235.68
*after adjustment of ₹47.30 lakh for sale of investments during FY 2017-18
Particulars

E. Derivatives
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Exposure to Derivative Instruments / products

Year ended
31.03.2019
NIL

Year ended
31.03.2018
NIL

F. Securitization
a) Details of SPVs sponsored for Securitization of Assets
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
SPVs Sponsored

Year ended
31.03.2019
NIL

Year ended
31.03.2018
NIL

b) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitization / Reconstruction Company for
Assets Reconstruction
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Financial Assets Sold

Year ended
31.03.2019
NIL

Year ended
31.03.2018
NIL

Year ended
31.03.2019
NIL

Year ended
31.03.2018
NIL

c) Details of Assignment transaction undertaken
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Assignment Transaction undertaken

d) Details of Non-performing financial assets purchased/sold
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Non-performing Financial assets Purchased
Non-Performing Financial Assets Sold
i) Number of accounts sold
ii) Aggregate outstanding
iii) Aggregate Consideration Received
iv) Gain/Loss over net book value

Year ended
31.03.2019

NIL

Year ended
31.03.2018

NIL

e) Exposures to Real Estate / Capital Market Sector
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
I. Exposure to Real Estate Sector undertaken
(Direct)
i) Residential Mortgage
ii) Commercial Real Estate
• Lending Secured by Mortgage on
commercial real estate
• Lending in mortgage backed securities
and other exposures
II. Exposure to Capital Market (Gross)
(a) Direct investment in equity shares,
convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds
the corpus of which is not exclusively

Year ended
31.03.2019

Year ended
31.03.2018

NIL

NIL

249.69

250.68

Particulars
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)
(h)

invested in corporate debt;
advances against shares / bonds /
debentures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in shares
(including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible
bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds;
advances for any other purposes where
shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary security;
advances for any other purposes to the
extent secured by the collateral security of
shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity
oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover
the advances;
secured and unsecured advances to
stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;
loans sanctioned to corporate against the
security of shares / bonds / debentures or
other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter's contribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of
raising resources;
bridge loans to companies against expected
equity flows / issues;
all exposures to Venture Capital Funds
(both registered and unregistered)

Year ended
31.03.2019

Year ended
31.03.2018

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

G. Breakup of Provision & Contingencies shown under the head expenditure in profit
& loss account
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
a. Provision for Fair Value Changes on
Investments
b. Provision for NPAs/Doubtful Debts
c. Provision for Diminution in NPV of Loans
d. Provision for Diminution in value of investments
e. Provision for Standard Assets
f. Provision Made towards Income Tax
g. Other Provision and Contingencies (Deferred
Tax Liability)

Year ended
31.03.2019

Year ended
31.03.2018

NIL

NIL

16709.61

10649.11

15.00
1035.85
4250

15.00
5740.00

56.15

-458.90

H. Concentration of Advances and Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
I.

II.

Concentration of Advances
Total advances to Twenty Large Borrowers
% of advances to Twenty Large Borrowers
Concentration of NPA
Total Exposure to Top Four NPAs

Year ended
31.03.2019

Year ended
31.03.2018

10401.91
3.91

11135.41
3.71

1725.80

2098.69

I.

Sector-wise NPA (Gross)
(₹ in Lakh)

S
No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Particulars
Agriculture & allied activities
MSME
Corporate borrowers
Services
Unsecured personal loans
Auto loans
Other personal loans

Year ended
31.03.2019
NIL
32436.89
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

Year ended
31.03.2018
NIL
11794.77
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

J. Movement of NPAs
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
1) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
2) Movement of Gross NPAs/Doubtful Debts
(a) Opening Balance
(b) Add: Addition During Year
(c) Less: Reduction/Write-off During Year
(d) Closing Balance

Year ended
31.03.2019
6.34

11794.77
20642.12
32436.89

Year ended
31.03.2018
0.07

12144.54
349.77
11794.77

3) Movement of Net NPAs/Doubtful Debts
(a) Opening Balance
(b) Add: Addition During Year
(c) Less: Reduction/Write-off During Year
(d) Closing Balance

15727.27

3.56
193.85

4) Movement in Provision for NPA/Doubtful
Debts
(a) Opening Balance
(b) Add: Provision made during the year
(c) Less: Loans Written off during the year
(d) Less: Provision Written Back
(e) Closing Balance

10380.82
6328.79
16709.61

10727.02
346.20
10380.82

193.85
15533.42

197.41

K. Other Information
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
31.03.2019

Year ended
31.03.2018

i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
- Related parties
- Other than related parties

32436.89

11794.77

ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
- Related parties
- Other than related parties

15727.27

193.85

L. Customer & Investor Complaints
Particulars
a. No. of complaints pending at the beginning of

Year Ended
31 March 2019
1

Year Ended 31
March 2018
1

Particulars
the year
b. No. of complaints received during the year
c. No. of complaints redressed during the year
d. No. of complaints pending at the end of the
year
e. No. of complaints pending at the beginning of
the year

Year Ended
31 March 2019

Year Ended 31
March 2018

113
112

114
113

1

1

1

1

23. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (as
required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Master Direction DNBR. PD.
008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 as amended)
Liabilities Side
1. Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

(a)
(b)
(c)

Debentures
Deferred Credits
Term Loans

(d)

Inter-Corporate Loans and
borrowings
Commercial Paper
Public Deposits
Other Loans
Bank Overdraft, Cash credit
& Working Capital Demand
Loan

(e)
(f)
(g)

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Amount
O/s

Amount
O/s

-

Amount
Overdue
-

Amount
-

-

5,268.00
-

-

5,689.72
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,05,113.52

1,71,383.76

2. Break-up of 1(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid) :
-Not ApplicableAsset Side
3. Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [Other than those
included in (4) below]
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
(a) Secured (net of provision)
(includes amount backed by BGs)
(b) Unsecured (net of provision)

Amount Outstanding
As at March 31, 2019
As at March 31, 2018
248016.65
289133.74
1.10

15.49

4. Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and hypothecation loans counting
towards AFC activities
-Not Applicable-

5. Break-up of Investments (net off diminution):
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

1
(i)
(a)
(b)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
2
(i)
(a)

Current Investments
Quoted
Shares
Equity
Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual Funds
Government Securities
Others
Unquoted
Shares
Equity

(b)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual Funds
Government Securities

(v)

Others
Long Term Investments
Quoted
Shares :
Equity (Fair Value)
Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual Funds

1
(i)
(a)
(b)
(ii)
(iii)

Amount Outstanding
As at March 31, 2019
As at March 31, 2018

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

234.69
NIL
NIL
NIL

235.66
NIL
NIL
NIL

(iv)
(v)
2
(i)
(a)
(b)
(ii)
(iii)

Government Securities
Others
Unquoted
Shares :
Equity (Net of Impairment)
Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual Funds

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

(iv)
(v)

Government Securities
Others

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

6. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above
(₹ in Lakh)

Category

1
(a)
(b)
(c)
2

As at March 31, 2019
As at March 31, 2018
Secured (Net Unsecured Secured
Unsecured
of Provision)
(Net of
(Net of
(Net of
Provision) Provision) Provision)

Related Parties
Subsidiaries
Companies in the same group
Other related parties
Other than related parties

Nil
Nil
Nil
248016.65

Nil
Nil
Nil
1.10

Nil
Nil
Nil
289133.74

Nil
Nil
Nil
15.49

7. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in
shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
(₹ in Lakh)

Category

1
(a)

Related Parties
Subsidiaries

(b)

Companies in the
same group

(c)
2

Other related parties
Other than related parties

As at March 31, 2019
Fair Value
Book Value
NIL

234.69

As at March 31, 2018
Fair Value Book Value

NIL

NIL

6.03

NIL

235.68

6.03

8. Other Information
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2019

(i)

Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a)
(b)

Related parties
Other than related parties

(ii)
(a)

Net Non-Performing Assets
Related parties

(b)
(iii)

Other than related parties
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
(Gross)

As at March 31,
2018

32436.89

11794.77

15727.27

193.85

24. No penalties have been levied on the Corporation by any regulator during the year ended
31st March, 2019 (Previous year Nil).
25. No complaints have been received by the Corporation from the borrowers under the Fair
Practices Code during the year ended 31st March, 2019 (Previous year Nil).
26. All amounts are in ₹ lakh, unless otherwise stated
27. Figures in brackets in the notes to the financial statements represent previous year’s figures
28. Previous year figures have been regrouped, rearranged and recast, wherever necessary.

*************

